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Bring happiness and
help your dream come true

@ Shinhan Bank Cambodia



SHINHAN BANK WILL BRING HAPPINESS
AND HELP YOUR DREAM COME TRUE

We will make customer value creation a top priority, delivering new values and
transforming customer experiences in financial services.

As a good corporate citizen, we will take our responsibilities to the public seriously and
remain committed to making our communities a better place under our Compassionate
Finance initiative.

We look forward to your continued support in our endeavor to make changes and take
challenges towards the future of finance.
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BE THE NEXT o

Shinhan will be the "Future of Finance," becoming the standard in the digital
age through 24-hour connectivity with the lives of our customers and
providing differentiated solutions beyond finance. We are going forward as
the dominant leader in the market as we shape the future of business.
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Breaking the barriers
for breakthrougn in finance

We are constantly developing ourselves further in order to seize new opportu-
nities — and yet always remaining true to our principles. In 2021, despite the
challenges posed by the prolonged COVID-19 pandemic,we achieved a
record-breaking performance, while also continuing our journey driven by
our mission of “Building a Better World through Finance.” And now we are
well positioned to take new challenges with “Breakthrough” as our strategic
keyword for the years ahead.
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MESSAGE FROM THE CEO

Dear Valued Customer,

It gives me immense pleasure to present you the overview of SBC Bank's performance, substantial achievements
and initiatives taken during the year of 2021. The prolonged COVID-19 pandemic in 2021 was a challenging
year for the world and Cambodia without exception, especially the community outbreak event in February 20.
The success of government’s vaccination program has brought us more hopes and opportunities as more than
80 percent of Cambodian people received at least two doses of covid-19 vaccines allowing the relaxation of
travel restriction and making the country to reopen for its economic recovery.

In 2021, we were able to deliver outstanding performance results with a significant increase of net profit by 51%,
which is about US$ 6.2 Million higher than the prior year balance. The main reason of this high record of profit
was due to the consistent growth of the net interest income amounting to US$ 34.94 Million, which is about 44%
increase compared to 2020. From the balance sheet side, our total asset recorded US$ 719 Million, an increase
of 19% compared to previous year at US$ 606 Million, mainly driven from the grow of deposit together with the
loan and advance to customers. With a well-managed and robust credit portfolio, our loans and advances grew
by 28% to US$ 561 Million versus prior year at US$ 437 Million, contributed mainly by sustained growth of retail
loan segment. Customer deposit also continued to increase, with significant growth of approximately US$ 21
Million bringing the balance as of 2021 to US$175 Million, an increase of 14% compared to 2020. In addition, as
the end of March 2022, we expanded branch channels to 12 branches to enable our customers experiencing the
bank’s services at their own convenience location.

Our loyalty customers and employees are behind of these achievements and result. Therefore, it's all thank to
valued customers who always support and care about Shinhan Bank Cambodia, and also our employees who
dedicated their effort and cooperation both hearts and souls to provide our customers with excellent value by
upholding our bank’s core values “customer-oriented” in mind.

I would like to thank you for your continuing trust and support for Shinhan Bank Cambodia, and | look forward

to what we will achieve together in the year ahead.
Kim Nowm Seo

Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC.
President & Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Kim Nam Soo

Thank you
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WE CREATE THE FUTURE OF FINANCE
THROUGH INNOVATION

Shinhan Bank has been pioneering the future of finance in Cambodia as the “First Mover” leading the market,
rather than being one of “Fast Followers” that struggle to catch up with new products and technologies.

We will never be satisfied with the current financial business in which FinTech is tearing down conventional

boundaries. Instead, we will continue to realize innovations as we rise up to challenge to offer new and futuristic
services.
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PROFI LE (As the end of Mar, 2022)

2007.10 ‘

2011.1 ‘

2012.12

2013.12

2015.03

2015.12

2016.04

2018.04

2018.05

Shinhan Khmer Bank was established
in Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia
(Subsidiary of Shinhan Bank, Korea)

Olympic branch opened as 1™ branch
in Phnom Penh

Teuk Thlar branch opened
as 2" branch

New Olympic branch was relocated
for its business expansion

Doun Penh branch was opened
as 3 branch

Stueng Mean Chey branch
was opened as 4" branches

Debit Card service launched

New Head Office was relocated
for its business expansion

Norodom Branch was opened
as 5" branch

2020.02 | Tuol Kouk Branch was opened

as 6™ branch

Business Analysis & Planning

2020.02

2020.02 ‘

2021.01

2021.01

2021.02

2021.02

2021.03

2022.03

2022.03

Audited Financial Report Global Network

Sen Sok Branch was opened as 7% branch

Chbar Ampov Branch was opened
as 8" branch

Beung Keng kang Branch was opened
as 9" branch

Mao Tse Toung Branch was opened
as 10" branch

Chroay Chongvar Branch was opened
as 11" branch

Steung Mean Chey Branch was relocated
for its business expansion

Relocation of Daun Penh Branch and
renaming Branch to Monivong Branch

Teuk Thlar Branch was relocated
for its business expansion

Ta Khmau Branch was opened
as 12" branch

- Major Shareholders

- Shinhan Bank (97.50%)

- Insung Co., Ltd. (2.50%)
* () Ownership %

Shinhan Bank [Cambodia) PLC.| 9



SHAREHOLDER: SHINHAN BANK IN KOREA

Shinhan Bank Cambodia is a subsidiary of Shinh?aﬁk in Korea
-
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SHINHAN BANK
Credit Rating & Key Financials

Shinhan Bank is the flagship company of Shinhan Financial Group. In 2021,
Shinhan Bank recorded a net profit of USD 2.1 billian

Credit Rating

Moody's S&P Fitch

Aa3 A+ A

Source: Company Factbooks, Bloomberg as of December 2021

Key Financials (As of Dec 31th 2021)

Total Assets
ROE Net Income ROA
USD 466 on 890« usD21w 056«

Source: KRX exchange rate as the end of December 2021 (1185.5 KRW/USD) is applied to all USD figures

Awards & Recognition

The Banker Top 500 Banking Brand [#65 globally]

Top 500 TheBanker,
The Banker “Top 500 Banking Brand 2020" P

Banking Brand
Euromoney South Korea's Best Bank EWB@M[DK EVZ
Euromoney “Award for Excellence Asia 2019”
Global Finance Best Bank -South Korea G

LIOBAL
Global Finance “World’s Best Bank Award 2018 FINANCE

Asiamoney Best Domestic Bank, South Korea

Best Cash Management Bank, South Korea ASiAMONEY

Asiamoney “Best Bank Awards” — 2018
“Best Bank Awards” — 2019
“Best Corporate Social Responsibility Awards - 2020”

Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC.| 1
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SHINHAN BUSINESS ORGANIZATION @

ment Corp., Shinhan Life Insurance, Shinhan Capital and Shinhan Asset Management, and 32 indirect subsidiaries. W
prowde comprehensive financial services, principally consisting of the following:
- commercial banking services, including retail banking, corporate banking, international banking, andﬁ%

Shinhan Financial Group consists of 17 direct subsidiaries that include Shinhan Bank, Shinhan Card, Shinhan Invest@

banking services.

- credit card services

* securities brokerage services

- life insurance services

- asset management services

- other services, such as savings banking services, loan collection and credit reporting, collective invest
administrative services, financial system development services, real estate trust services, investment advisory
services, and venture capital services.

Total Group Assets Net Income Return on Asset Return on Equity
USD 546 bn USD 3.39 bn 0.66% 9.174%

(As of Dec 31st 2021)

BUSINESS REPORT

O

Shinhan

Shinhan Bank Jeju Bank Life Insurance

Shinhan
Investment Corp

Shinhan
Capital

Shinhan
Savings Bank

Shinhan Card

Shinhan Sainhan Shinhan REITs
Alternative
Asset Tra— Management
Management

O

Shinhan Venture
Investment

Shinhan

Shinhan AITAS

Credit Information
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STOCK INFORMATION

Business Analysis & Planning
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MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS"

Name of Shareholder Ownership
National Pension Service 45,340,437 8.78%
BlackRock Fund Advisors? | 29063012 | 563%
SFG Employee Stock Ownership Association | 25464625 | 4.93%
Centennial Investment Limited | 20440000 | 396%
BNPParibasSA 18690310 | 362%
Supreme, LP. 18690000 | 3.62%
Citibank, NA. (ADRDept) | 157283% | 3.04%
NorgesBank | 1043161 | 202%
The Government of Singapore | 9477462 | 1.83%
Vanguard Total International Stock Index | 6398267 1.24%
Peoples Bank of China 5522909 | 1.07%
Others 340410987 | 65.89%
Total 516,599,554 100.00%

STOCK PERFORMANCE

Market Capitalization (Year End)

(Unit: KRW)

[ 20 | 2020 2019
19.0 trillion 16.6 trillion 20.6 trillion
36,800 32,050 43,350

43,000 42,750 48,000

30,650 22,200 38,350

0.9% 0.8% 1.4%

1.8 million

2.4 million

1.0 million

Dividend Per Share (Common Stock) 1,960 1,500 1,850
Total Dividend Paid (Common Stock) 1,047 billion 804 billion 884 billion
Dividend Payout Ratio (Common Stock) 25.2% 22.7% 25.0%
n Holding ownership of more than 1% in common stocks as of December 31, 2021
2 Based on the large equity ownership disclosure by BlackRock Fund Advisors with the Financial Supervisor Service on Sep. 27, 2018
% The Number of treasury shares held by Shinhan Financial Group as of December 31, 2021 is 6,352 common shares
4 All of the 17,482,000 convertible preferred shares other than the above common shares are held by Mercury 1st LLC.
SHARE OWNERSHIP
(%) DOMESTIC
: Type of Stock
2021 Common Stock 516,599,554
Convertible Preferred Stock? 17,482,000
FOREIGN

Shinhan Bank [Cambodia) PLC.| 13
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Shinhan Way 2.0

The "Shinhan Way" , which consists of our corporate mission, core values, and vision,
is the standard that guides the thoughts and actions of all of us at Shinhan Financial Group.

Mission
Compassionat o i

A better world through Finance

Core Value

O

(@)
o) Ko Ao

Right Nimble Different
We value doing what is RIGHT We value being NIMBLE- We respect individual
for our customers executing with flexibility and DIFFERENCES and value having
and for the future generations. efficiency, never stop learning DIFFERENTIATED outcomes.

and keep moving forward.

Vision
We believe fihahce should be
+ More FriendlY, More Secure, More Creative

»

1
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DIGITAL SHINHAN

By utilizing the digital platform named "SOL" and the offline platform community,
Shinhan provides differentiated solutions and pursues a creative online-offline
convergence based on big data analysis. Through these efforts, we are able to
enhance work efficiency in all of our segments.

Mobile Banking

Shinhan

Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC.| 15
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2021 2020 2019
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER (Audited) (Audited) (Restated)”

. . |
Balance Sheet (US$ million)

Total Assets 718.90 605.94 442.84
Total Gross Loans and advance 560.76 436.73 312.52
Total Deposits 175.14 154.02 156.37
Equity 139.89 121.50 109.35

P&L Account (US$ thousand)

Net Interest Income 34,941.47 24,265.89 15,273.45
Net Fee, Commission and other Income 1,471.77 1,023.95 1,267.34
Net Profit 18,396.66 12,146.93 6,217.81

Key Performance Indicators (%)

ROAE 13.2% 10.5% 5.9%
ROAA 2.6% 2.3% 1.8%
Cost/Income 32.4% 31.1% 38.4%
Liquidity Ratio 136.3% 113.5% 147.74%
Credit Deposit Ratio 319.3 282.64 198.66%
Solvency Ratio 21.4% 22.90% 31.82%

General Information

Operating Branches 12 9 6
Staff 402 345 237
ATMs 25 18 13
Depositors 23,268 17,252 15,246
Borrowers 8,195 5,900 3,407

Mobile Banking Users

17,269

12,268

6,436

16 | Annual Report 2021

* Figures updated in accordance with the Cambodian International Financial Reporting Standards



Message From the CEO ~ About Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC. Business Analysis & Planning Audited Financial Report Global Network

SIMPLIFIED FINANCIAL RESULTS

=3 PROFIT & LOSS (US$ thousand)

12,147

B Net Interest = Net Fee, Commission Net Profit
Income and other Income

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON 2021 TO 2020 The brief report illustrates the prior year’s financial performance

and its current result.

During the year 2021, The Covid-19 severely impact on many industries. However, our bank still keep striving to sustainably serve
its best financial service to our customers and able to continue growing together.

As of 2021, the bank’s net interest income increased 44% compared to 2020 which is about US$10.6 miillion. As a result, the
bank’s net profit also increased by 51% which is about USS6.2 million compared to the prior year.

P&L Account (US$ Million)

2018 2019 2020 2021

B Net Interest m Net Fee, Commission m Net Profit
Income and other Income

Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC.| 17
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BALANCE SHEET (US$ million)

Key Performance Indicators (%)

Equity Deposits 154 ROAE 13.2%
ROAA 2.6%

175 Cost/Income 32.4%

Liquidity Ratio 136.3%

Credit Deposit Ratio 319.29%

Solvency Ratio 21.35%

Gross Loans
advance

719
ASSETS
IN USD MILLIONS
o
+19%
Increase from
2020

B 2019 m 2020 m 2021

561

LOANS 437
IN USD MILLIONS

+28%

Increase from

2020
2020 2021 2020 2021
154
SHAREHOLDER'S 121
EQUITY
REUIZS)I\SAII;_I-LISONS INQUSD MILLIONS
o (y
+14% +11%
Increase from Increase from
2020 2020
2020 2021 2020 2021
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GENERAL INFORMATION

NUMBER OF
DEPOSITORS

+35%

Increase from
2020

NUMBER
OF STAFFS

+17%

Increase from
2020

OPERATING
BRANCHES

+33%

Increase from
2020

17,252

2020

2020

2020

23,268

2021

2021

2021

Business Analysis & Planning

8,195
NUMBER OF
BORROWERS BEGAAY
+39%
(0]
Increase from
2020

2020 2021

Audited Financial Report Global Network

17,269
NUMBER OF
MOBILE
BANKING
USERS
+41%
(0]
Increase from
2020
2020 2021
25
NUMBER
OF ATMs
+39%
(0]
Increase from
2020
2020 2021

Shinhan Bank [Cambodia) PLC.| 19
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EVENT HIGHLIGHTS
CSR (Corporate Social Responsibility)

Shinhan Bank Cambodia staffs participated in a CSR activity periodically

Thmorda Galilee

RN ./ Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc
e oo : LA has donated school uniform for 300 students to

[School Uniform For 300 Students )

International School of Thmorda Galilee.

cagfgosinempe Kantha Bopha Foundation

— Shinhan Bank is honored to contribute donation to
Cambodia Kantha Bopha Foundation in purpose of
helping Cambodian children and to ensure the sustain-
able of all five Kantha Bopha hospitals to continue in
its mission to provide medical care for children,free of

charge, of high quality, and non-discriminatory

Shinhan Bank Cambodia

KA O SR T e
(@) emmmamneinge

Certificate of Appneciation
nmnging nndim:

Association of Banks in Cambodia

Shinhan Bank is honored to contribute donation
through the Association of Banks in Cambodia in
order to prevent and fight against the spread of
Covid-19 particularly during this lockdown period.
We wish all Cambodians with good health and avoid
this Covid-19 pandemic.

i

@ Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

fige #,000 fopiniti

2L

R.2.9
o

AT

@u@g*n‘é}u@ EXURXLED

| Hope Scholarship
S50 90830 « ® ROLUNIW:TY\»

Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc has provided scholarship to the
Department of Korean, Institute of Foreign Language
at the Royal University of Phnom Penh.

nnnnnnn
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MAIN MANAGEMENT & BOARD OF DIRECTORS' PROFILE

Board of Directors' Profile

Mr. Seo Seung Hyeon
Current Independent Member
of Board of Director

Mr. Kim Nam Soo
Current CEO & Member
of Board of Director

o' An

Mr. Kim Choon Ho
Current Vice President & Member
of Board of Directors

22 | Annual Report 2021

Mr. Seo was appointed Chair-
man of Board of Directors for
Shinhan Bank Cambodia in
March 2020. He has almost 30
years of extensive experienc-
es in banking business
management. Since joining
Shinhan Bank Korea in 1994,
he has held various key senior
management  positions in
charge of many banking
businesses including Global
Business  and Strategy,
International Trade Business,
Branch Business Management
in Asia and Europe countries,
and Corporate Social Respon-
sibility.

Mr. Kim joined Shinhan Bank
Korea in 1995 and was
appointed Chief Executive
Officer and member of Board
of Directors for Shinhan Bank
Cambodia in March 2021. With
more than 25 years of signifi-
cant experiences and in-depth
knowledge  of  business
management, Mr. Kim has held
a series of management roles
with many fields of business in
Shinhan Bank and Shinhan

Financial  Group, including
Business Planning and
Management, Corporate
Business Banking, General

Branch Management, and HR
Management.

Mr. Kim is the executive vice
president. He was appointed
member of the board of direc-
tors for Shinhan Bank Cambo-
dia in January 2020. He has
more than 10 years substantial
experiences in leading devel-
opment of digital, IT and
innovation transformation. In
Shinhan Bank Korea, he served
many managerial positions in
the area of Global & Digital
Development.

"

Mr. Lee Sang Hoon

Current Vice President & Member

of Board of Directors

- N

Mr. Lee Dae Kun
Current Member of Board
of Directors

Mr. Kim Yuk Dong
Current Independent Member
of Board of Director

Mr. Park Woo Gyun
Current Independent Member
of Board of Director

(As the end of Mar, 2022)

Mr. Lee is the executive vice
president. He was appointed
member of the board of direc-
tor for Shinhan Bank Cambodia
in March 2021. With almost 20
years of exceptional experi-
ences in banking and finance,
Mr. Lee held many senior
management roles in Shinhan
Bank Korea, Vietnam and
Cambodia. His professional
includes Business Development,
Strategic Planning , HR Task

Force Team, and Shinhan
Culture Team.
Mr. Lee was appointed

member of the Board of Direc-
tors in September 2021. He
has served with many mana-
gerial positions at Shinhan
Bank Korea and Vietnam with
very strong expertise in
finance and banking business
including  Future Strategy,
Institution Business, and
Branch Business Management
for more than 20 years.

Mr. Kim joined Shinhan Bank in
1986 and was appointed
independent member of Board
of directors for Shinhan Bank
Cambodia in July 2020. He has
profound  experiences in
finance and banking business
more than 30 years. Mr. Kim
has served many executive
positions in  Shinhan Bank
Korea and Shinhan Bank India.

Mr. Park was appointed
independent member of Board
of directors in September
2021. Since joining Shinhan
Bank in 1987, Mr. Park has

served  many  executive
positions in Shinhan Bank
Korea including  General

Manager of many Branches,
Manager of HR Department,
and Executive Director in
Compliance Department.
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MAIN MANAGEMENT & BOARD OF DIRECTORS' PROFILE

Main Managements’ Profile

Mr. Jung In Chang
Current Vice President

Mr. Song Kyo Min
Current Vice President

Mr. Lee Jung Hoon
Current Director

Mr. Jung joined Shinhan Bank
Cambodia in July 2021 as the
Vice President. He has very
strong expertise in  Loan
Business. He had served with
managerial position at Shinhan
Bank Korea for more than 20
years.

Mr. Song was Appointed vice
president of Shinhan Bank
Cambodia in 2021, previously
he has served various senior
management roles in Credit
Planning  and  Corporate
Banking Center at Shinhan
Bank Korea. With almost 20
years of deep understanding
and significant experience in
the field of credit, currently he
is responsible for many credit
tasks such as planning, assess-
ment, administration, collec-
tion, and Human Resources.

Mr. Lee joined Shinhan Bank
Cambodia in 2019. As a director
position, he has extensive exper-
tise in Risk Management and
Finance & Accounting. He has
served with a number of mana-
gerial positions at Shinhan Bank
Korea for more than 15 years.

Mr. Kim Min Su
Current Director

ﬁ\

-

ah

Mr. Lee Hyun Duk
Current Director

X

Mr. Kim Young Wook
Current Director

(As the end of Mar, 2022)

Mr. Kim was appointed director
for Shinhan Bank Cambodia in
2020. He has substantial knowl-
edge and experience in banking
business for more than 10 years.
Previously he has served many
years as management roles in
Retail Banking Business at
Shinhan Bank Korea.

Mr. Lee was appointed Director
of Shinhan Bank Cambodia in
January 2022. He has served as
managerial position with exten-
sive experiences in Information
Technology at Shinhan Bank
Korea for more than 25 years.

Mr. Kim was appointed Director
of Shinhan Bank Cambodia in
January 2021. He has served with
many managerial positions with
significant experiences in Retail
Banking & Card Business at
Shinhan Bank Korea for more
than 10 years.

Shinhan Bank [Cambodia) PLC.| 23



Message From the CEO  About Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC.

Business Analysis & Planning

BRAN CH N ETWORK (As the end of Mar, 2022)

Sen _Sok' °
Tuoﬁouk &
(R

.Teuk Thlar

Q

Audited Financial Report Global Network

O n

00 : -'-"

¥
&
Head Office

Olympic

v
g Mao Tse Toung
Stueng Mean Chey

~ Norodom

SHINHAN BANK (CAMBODIA) PLC.
No. 79 Kampuchea Krom, Sangkat Monorom.
Khan 7 Makara, Phnom Penh, Cambodia

Tel. 855-23 971 100

SWIFT: SHBKKHPP

SHINHAN BANK MAIN BRANCH

No. 79 Kampuchea Krom, Sangkat Monorom.
Khan 7 Makara, Phnom Penh, Cambodia

Tel. 855-23 971 100

SWIFT: SHBKKHPP

OLYMPIC BRANCH

No.11 St. 163, Sangkat Veal Vong, Khan 7
Makara, Phnom Penh, Cambodia

Tel. 855-23-988-381

Fax. 855-23-988-382

SWIFT: SHBKKHPP

TEUK THLAR BRANCH

No0.A99 & A101, Russian Federation Blvd.,,
Sangkat Teuk Thlar, Khan Sen Sok,
Phnom Penh, Cambodia

Tel: 855-23-988-363

SWIFT: SHBKKHPP

MONIVONG BRANCH

N° 423 & 425E0, Preah Monivong Blvd.
Corner Street N° 198, Phum Phum 3, Sangkat
Boeng Proluet, Khan Prampir Meakkakra,
Phnom Penh. Cambodia

Tel. 855-23-988-390

SWIFT: SHBKKHPP

2/ | Annual Report 2021

STUENG MEAN CHEY BRANCH

N° 8, Preah Monireth Blvd., Grouop 7,
Phum Trea, Sangkat Stueng Mean Chey 1,
Khan Mean Chey, Phnom Penh. Cambodia
Tel: 855-23-957-680

SWIFT: SHBKKHPP

NORODOM BRANCH

No.277 Norodom Blvd, Sangkat Tonle Bassac,
Khan Chamkarmorn,

Phnom Penh, Cambodia

Tel. 855-23-988-310

SWIFT: SHBKKHPP

CHBAR AMPOV BRANCH

#44, National Road 1, Tangov, Niroth,
Chbar Ampov, Phnom Penh
Cambodia

Tel: 023-900-820

SWIFT: SHBKKHPP

SEN SOK BRANCH

#127, St 1003, Bayab, Phnom Penh Thmey,
Sen Sok, Phnom Penh

Cambodia

Tel: 023-900-850

SWIFT: SHBKKHPP

TUOL KOUK BRANCH
#57, 5t.289, Boeung Kak I,
Tuol Kouk, Phnom Penh
Cambodia

Tel: 023-900-830

SWIFT: SHBKKHPP

BOENG KENG KONG BRANCH

N° 366C, Preah Monivong Blvd,Phum Phum 2,
Sangkat Boeng Keng Kang Ti Mouy,

Khan Boeng Keng Kang, Phnom Penh. Cambodia
Tel. (+855) 23 902 223

SWIFT: SHBKKHPP

MAO TSE TUNG BRANCH

N© 145, Mao Tse Toung Blvd (245), Phum Phum 6,
Sangkat Tuol Svay Prey Muoy, Khan Boeng Keng Kang,
Phnom Penh. Cambodia

Tel. (+855) 23 902 224

SWIFT: SHBKKHPP

CHRAOY CHANGVAR BRANCH

N© 436, National Road N° 6, Phum Phum 3,
Sangkat Chraoy Chongvar, Khan Chraoy Chongvar,
Phnom Penh. Cambodia

Tel. (+855) 23 902 225

SWIFT: SHBKKHPP

TA KHMAU BRANCH

#218, National Road No.21 Corner Street No. 110,
Phum Thmei 2, Sangkat Ta Khmau, Krong Ta Khmau,
Kandal Province, Cambodia

Tel. (+855) 24 900 107/ 108/109

SWIFT: SHBKKHPP
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BUSINESS ANALYSIS & PLANNING

1. Banking environment & SWOT analysis
¢ Strength

»  Strong tranding name & reladle banking service (among Korean community &
corporate)

= Mghly secured & trusted internet & ATMs service (using latest Banking technology
developed In Korea)

«  Bckent management

= Lower labor cost

«  Getting Rl suppert from Head office (Financal and technical support)

¢ Weakness

«  Image s not muwch known to Local Cambodian
© Not aggressive partiopate i local market
= Focusing only on Korean community/corporate

¢ Opporuniies

Opportunties to grow and gan market shares
Direct and casily peretrate 10 NiKhe market

Diversifies providing loan/new products 1o other sectors
Potential to be the leading banks

¢ Threats

There are many peice leaders n the Banking market industry
Possbie adverse effect of economic and sociyl effect,
Competitor adopts Nexbie, and iInndvative products
Competiter gradudlly ALEracts Our Man chents

Irsuficent branch to get doser to Its Major corporate chents

I, Marketing plan

o Good quality asset growth
o Localzation of manpower and system
o Strengthen of network and non-faced chansel

III. Risk mitigation and planning
The bank defines what type of risk the bank might face.

- Credit Risk
Crednt risk is ansing from the fallure of the counterparty / obiigor to meet the terms of
Sy CONract with the bask or fall 1o perform as agreed

Market risk s the risk arieng from adverse movements In macket rates o changes n
the value of portfolios of Ninanciy! Instruments
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- Interest Rates risk
Interest rate risk is the risk arising from the movements in interest rates

- Foreign Exchange Risk
Foreign Exchange risk is the risk arising from movements of foreign exchange rates

- Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk arising from a bank's inability to meet its obligations when they
become due, without incurring unacceptable losses.

- Legal Risk
Legal risk is risk arising out of violations of or non-conformity with laws, rules,
regulations, prescribed and accepted practices or ethical standards.

- Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk arising from problems with service or product delivery, the
risk that deficiency in information systems or internal controls leads to unexpected
losses. Operational risk is associated with human error, system failure and inadequate
procedures and controls.

- Reputation Risk
Reputation risk is the risk that the bank suffers from deterioration of its recognition and
negative public opinion.

- Other risks
Strategic Risk the risk arising from adverse business decisions or
improper/inappropriate implementation of those decisions.

The bank well prepare itself by stated its risk control & management in its risk
management policy. The policy includes risk assessment & control, reporting system
process, risk control approaches which clearly divides level of authorities, detail document
requirements, control measures, segregation of duties, internal audit review, established
reporting system, proper management policy, and contingency policy and testing.

IV. Training & employee skill development
= Offer customized training program for each occupational group
- Offer customized training program like Deposit, Loan, Foreign Exchange,
Accounting etc
- Pre-computing education, getting ready to the new system, ‘AITHER’

» Fair personnel evaluation and compensation
- Compensate after thoroughgoing evaluation depends on outcomes and use it for
re-evaluation
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G Shinhan Bank

Report of the Directors

The Drociors hurve phosire N sulyiiing New 1opon geher with, e sudied francs stalements of
Shinban Bark 1Contodal P (Me Bark™) fr w0 yourr eocied 31 Decarmbae 2001

Principal activities

The Bark & prnopaly onga0ed i ol aspects of bankong tumness and B provescn of relaled fnancad
eV

There ware N0 SONSCINE CNANQes 10 These panopa acivies Aung Tw Broncad yor

Financial results

i Tl resuts of 1he Bars 120 e yoor ended 31 Docemter 2021 were 20 Sollows

poarg) 20 S0 200
USS Ss e KA2000
Note & Nose &
Frok butoee oo Se 23027 7&7 V8127 567 MOES 012N
Yo e exdeore & 631 0008 (2 .5980 55) (18 .800.274) (28217
ot ool oy e your 18.355.657 2146500 ARV N AR

Dividends

No dvidend wirs cockaed or peed. and e Dirocions does fdd recortmend iy Svidend 1 be posd e e
fancl your (2020 N9

Share capital

Thets wim 80 Ghandes n 1 shase cagdnd Sy e franoal yoor

Resorves and provisions

THen wore NO et Mmowvermares 40 O Born mservis S rOvesdrd g e INanall yair oher Tan
Pose Saciosed In e fnancll stmoments

Together,
a better tomorrow
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Shinhan Bank (Cambeodia) Plc.

Written off and allowance for financial assets

Belore e Inanodd statements wete propared. He Deecion ook masonabie staps 10 ascentan hat
2C0n Pord Been Shon I coliion 10 wrte off of fruncad iats Tl Nive 10O NedsOralie eaxpaciitions of
recoverng he contraciual Gash fows In hew enfirety O & porton thereo! and maskang of allowance for
expocied Coecit rsues (0L ") on fnancisd soety, 4 sitahod Dorrmehes Bt i taoen francil sxsets
et have 0 reasonabie expactatons of recoveng He contraciud cash fows were arfien off and hat
adeate slowance &r [C1 on fnancial assets huve been made.

Al the date Of this regon. Ihe Deocions are not aware of By CRoumstances which would render the amount
of e alowance K upecind codt ke on francd sssels o B Snancas stoments of T Back
Facequate 10 Ay malerad extent.

Assots
Belore 1w fnancasl staderrerts of the Bark were prepased. o Drecions 100k sedaonadis shops X ofiuse
1t any asaets, ofher Ton debts. which wese uriiosly 10 Bo reabsed n the ordeary course of busmess ot

Sowr valug 24 Ahown it e AC00uNEnNg fecoeds of 0 Bk Nadd Doen welien down 15 a0 amourt which
ey mght be especied 1 realse

Al e Sto of e seport, he Dirociirs aee it aware of sy Securralances, whch windd render e waluos
DA 0 He assets N He fnarcal statements of he Bark mesieadrg

Valuation methods

Al e date of 1es seport, the Dvechons are not aware of sy Croumsances which have assen whioh
sender acheserce 0 Be exntng method of valaton of saets and lobiites n Be francil strtoments
of o Bark misieadng of nagpropiate.

Contingent and other liabilities
Al o dade of P agcr!, aame doem rct Gunt

(80 any charge 00 e 2ssets of he Bark which has ansen snca he end of the Snancil yeur which
secures e Bbites of any oher porson. or

(L) any corngent labdty In respact of the Bank Pat has arsen sinoe e end of e Inancial yoor other
Tan n he crdinary course of Banking tutness.

No contngent or ofher ity of e Bark has Decome enforceabie o & Mely 10 bocome enlomeabie

Wit B ponod of Swelve monthe afler the end of By francal pedr which, m e opon of e Direcions,
wit of mary subssandally affect e abiity of the Bank 10 moet s 0DIQtONS a8 and when hey fal due
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Change of circumstances

A Bw date of B eport. e Drecions see net mare of sy Oroumiiinces, ot oihosweso dedlt wilth
P repon or he foanckd stalements of the Bark, which would rendier any amourt staded n e francksd

satemects makeacing

Items of unusual nature

The rosults of he operations of the Bark for $w Snancaal year wore nof, n B opnen of Be Maragerment.
ttortiily Afectnd by aoy Borm, BROacsOn Of evert of & maneral and wiususl nane. esoept for

Covigh 19 and its smpact on £CL

The ECL wirs colrrated Banid On B 100 of Icin! economic CoNAions a5 o neporing date. The
Nowel Coronanvanus (Covd- 15 outtreak has spread acrons B wodd ncludng Cantoda and toyond .
g eapton 1 Business and economic activily. The srpact on GOP and obver key indcators has
boen considened when detormining e severty and Sadhond of dowrsde economc scananos hat an
used 1 eslrrade ECL in whweh e calodaton of e ECL » % cunerst onvisonmest is sulject 10

signiicant uncertanty  Managoment provides 8 besd ostmato on he posatie outcormes of Cows- 19 on
Po [ark howovet T oalirruio Sy mowe madodidy i evernts wriokd

There has not arisen n e rienval betwoen Be ond of He Snancial year and B date of P roport any

B Dareeacton o overd of & mutoriad and unusul nabse Bhely. in the opeion of e Direcaors, 10 aflodt
subatarialy he results of the operstons of e Bank for he cument yoor In which e ropon & made

Board of Directors
The Deectrs who served Surng e yodr and i the date of Tes 10pon e

Mr Seo Seung Hypeon Chaerie

My K N 500 Drocier (appoeted on 135 Januery 2021)

N K Choon o Dwocior

M. Lee Sanghoon Dwocior

M. Leo Dow Man Dwoctor (apported on 1 Septermber 2021)

M Cho Du Yeon Indepencent drecior pesgred on 27 May 2021)

M. Kirn Yk Corg Independent drockor

M. Pack WooGyun ndepencent drecior Lapponted on 1 Sepeermber 2021)

Directors’ interests
None of the Deecions hald or dealt deectly In the shaves of 1he Bank dusing e Snancil yoar
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Pic.

Directors’ benefits

Dung and at e endd of B nancis your. no artangements oustiod 1o which the Bark 5 0 party weh the
byt of erating Dreciors of he Bank 10 acgues Denefits by madrs of he Roguisiion of shases n o
debortures of e Bark o ary other body coporate

Durng he fnarcsd your. 00 Direcior of the Bark hat recisved o bocome antied 10 receve Sy boredl
fomher han 3 beneft ncluded n he aggregate amount of emcluments received o Gue and reconadie by
e Drociors o dacioted n e fnancud sermnts) by redscn of & confeie! mude by Do Bark o &
related Corpossion wih 3 fem of whuch Hhe Deecr i 2 mender, o with @ company i whoh the Direcior
tue & sutalirtnd feancil rieteul Sthr Than s dackand n o feancd stements

Directors’ responsibility in respect of the financial statements

The Dinciors arm sssgonstie Sor sacertaring il B Sroncil ststerments prosont Sardy. n ol mutoriad
seagocts. e franond postion of e Bark a8 ot 31 Docomber 2031 and s franol perfonmunce and s
canh Sows £x P your Ben ended In propading Tuse francas ststoments, e Direcions i seguned 1

1 acpt pppeoprate SO0OUNENG SORCES Which INe SUREONed by resonabie Bnd peudent Ldgments
ared ostmadon andd Ben apply e consatently’

(R comply min Camboden intematongd Francal Repotng Sunderds ("CIFRSE) o, I e have
Soor any depariares n He et of Tue and B presertation. onsuro il hese have boon
eropritely Skl cophantd and Quartfed o e francal statomenis

(0 oversee P ank's francad reporting process and masrtasn adequade 2000UNENg fecoeds and an
efloctive syatorm of riomal contols,

v sssess the Dok 5 abty 1 condnue s 3 gong Conoeen, dackning. 38 apeicabie. maders reksted
QOUING CONCem Bnd Ly e Qowg CONCemM Bass of BOCouning urkess the Direcions ofther iends
Iguachie e Bark or 10 ceane operatons, o has 1O adsic alerTave Dt 10 00 %0 and

{v] cond and deet efectivoly Te Bk n ol maledel decacrs afecing T Opeetions d
peroemance ard moeran Bt such have boen properly reflocied In the francil stalemonts.

The Drecions conlens Tt Dy have compied wilh Ta abowe sequeetments 1 grepirrg the francasl
Rements
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Approval of the financial statements

We. horoby approve T accompanyng Srancal statements ogethed with e notos Do a5 set ot on
pages § 10 100 whith. in our opeeon, gresent ey, = o mutonal respects, the Snancil posdion of the
Bank 26 ot 31 Decermber 2021, and 8 fnanciy pecosmance and s cosh Sows for the year then ended,
n scordeecs with CIFRSs

St I scooniye with & sk oon of M Bowd of Dirvcins,
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KPMG

KPMG Camboda L

GIA Tower, Sopheak Monghul Sreet, Phum 14
Sangkat Torle Bassac, XKhan Chamikar Mon
Phoom Pech, Camboda

+ 855 (17) 686 537 / + BS5S (81) 533 993 | kpmg.com kh

Report of the Independent Auditors
To the shareholders of

Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Opsinion

W have audted e fnancal staterments of Shinfan Bark (Camboda) Pic. (e Bank),
whch compmme e ststement of francal postion a8 o )1 Decermber 2021, te
siaterwrds of proft o lons and O Comprehernive NCome, Chunges N ety and cash
fows for B peir Bun oncied, S0 NOM, COMYINg Sgnicant accountng polcoes and
ofner explanaiory riomaton (hoseafier sdened 10 28 T francl slitements”) as set out
on pages 9 100

I O Opeion. e RCCOMpanyTy) francl statements presect fary, o materal
respects. he financial posiion of he Bank as &t 31 Decemter 2021, and s fnancial
pedommance and is cash fows for e yeor hen ended n accordance win Cambodan
INematonal Francis Repoting Standards ('CIFRSs™)

Basis for Opinion

Wi CONclucied Sur it I accordarcs with CamBodian remational Sandet on Auditng
(CISAS") Our resporsiites under Those standands ae Lrher descrbed n T Auciions’
Fesponsbites Ly He Aut of e Francial Sialoments secson of our mpot We are
ndependent of he Bark n acoorance wah The othical regurements Pat are sslevart 10 our
auckt of e froncel stalermerts In Camboda, and we have Lfed our other ethcal
resporsIBes N a0coraNce with hese rouraments. Ve beleve fat he audt evidence
wn havee cbtaned s suffaent and approprate % provice 3 bass for our opron

Other information

Maragorer! & responsdie e P oer nicomation. The other efonmution comprses
P Repon of he Drecions on pages 190 5, and the annual mpon, which & sxpected 10
be made avalatie 10 us afler that date Our opnion on e fnancial Satemants does not
cover e Ofner NIDOMAsoN and we 00 N expieds Ay oM of ESUaNce CoONCiUSoN
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- -

KPMG

5 comection with our suclt of the francad ststements. Our maporstity s 1o read the other
PROTAton and, N Bong 50, Conaider whether i Other Ffonmaton i muterally reormatert with
Do Inancl ststements of our NOWIOdNe Chtansd N e AUt of OirwEe A0pean 10 o
manenally mastated I Dased on e work we have parformed 0n T other NOTaton cbtared
PNOr 10 the date of s 2UCRONS' NEPOt, we CoNCiude Pat e & & Mmatenal msstatement of hs
other INlormation. we ane freguired 10 repot hat fact. Ve harve notheny 10 fepont i thes fegaed

Responsibiites of Management and Those Charged with Govermance for the
Financis/ Staternents

Naragement & resporsbie 10 the preparaton and tar presentaton of the fnancal statements n
accordance winh CIFRSs. and for such mlemal conrol 88 Management 0elenTines & Necessary
1 eratie Pe preporaton of francial sttements Tt are free fom materal mestatement, whether
e 15 S or enor

N preparng he francil statements. management & responsbie for assessing Te Bank's abity
© condrue 35 3 QOINg Concam, daciosng a5 appicable, maters reladed %0 gong concem and
Vg the gong concem bss of accounting uniess maragement afher rdends 10 ucets the
Bk o 10 Colg CpRatons. O Pt 1O kit aberatve Bt 10 4O %0

Those charged with govesarcn e maporsbie for oversesng the Bank's fnancal reporing
Process

Aucitors' Responsibilities for the Awclit of the Financial Statements

Owr obyectives are 10 obtan reasonable assurance about whether he fnancal statements as 2
whole are See Som materal msstatement. whether due 10 fraud or enor, and 10 BsUe a0 audions’
Mo Sunt nchuces our cpnicn. Ressorable assurance & 8 hoh lovel of sssrance bt s ot a
Suiriries hal an sl conducied i accordanch wilh CISAs wil swanys defect & matersd
frealiternert when | eoats  Mastalements cin arise fom Baud of emor and e corsciond
mranodal I ndhacualy o I e BQYegEte, they could rascrably be axpacied 10 rfuence Pe
COONOMIC SO0SONS Of users taken on the basis of hese Tnancal statements

As pan of an sult n accordance with CISAS Wi eosetne Srofensdnal Lagment and marntan
professonal shegtoiam Bvoughout the audt We also

o Kertfy and sasess Pe rks of matertal mastalernent of the fnancial statoments. whether
SUs 10 Fud o entr, desgt And padioem SUSt procidures fponeve 15 those nsks, and
LA Buclt evisence Tt i UGNt and Spsropdats 10 provichs & Bass & our cprion. The
fah of not detecting & matical mastalerract auling fom faud B hghee han e o
msuling fom emor. a8 faud may mwvohve colluson, ey, Nentiordl  omasions,
mivepresentations. of the overmice of ntemal contel

o Cxtan an undentanding of rtemal contol melevart 10 Pe sudt N order 10 design audt
SrOcecres B! ae Sp0rOpcute N e crumatances, Bt not for e purpose of eapressng
0 opinen on Be efectiveness of He Back's riemad cortral

o Evalate e appropnatencss of accounting policies wsed and he reasonablensss of
2CoOUrtNg estimales and relied deciosures made by management.
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KPMG

o Concude on the appropnatensss of management's use of the gong concem bass of
accourtng and. based on P audt evidence obtaned whether 3 matersl uncertanty eusts
related 15 everts Or CONGBons That My cand sgniicant doutt on the Bank's atdty 1o cortirue
i 3 gong concem. Fwe concluch) thit & matetsl uncavtanty sasts, we A sguned 1 craw
A0NEON 0 O BUSESS Do 15 The relted Saciceuss N e Trancil staterments o, f such
GSC0Res are Nadeuate, 1 modly our opeon. Our conchusons ire Dased on He aud
evidence oianed up 10 Pe dade of Our 2O repOnt. Howewer, Louse events Of CONlONS
May Couse he Bank 10 coase 10 CONINUS 38 3 OV CONCem

o Evaluste the overal prasentaton, sinctum and contert of the fnancad statements. noluding
P Saciosures, And whether B fnancsl staterments grsent e undedyng Farsactons
B overts i B MAanner Tt Sctueved lar presentation

Wo communcale wih Tioss Charped with oS ancs gading among ot matiers, he

panred scope Ind g of the sudt and signiicant audt fndings. nckcding ary spficant
defcencos in rtemal Contel Pt wa iSendly dunng our et
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Statement of financial position

as at 31 December 2021

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents - net

Placements with other banks - net

Statutory deposits

Loans and advances to
customers - net

Other assets

Debt investments

Property and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets - net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDER'’S EQUITY

Liabilities

Deposits from customers

Deposits from other banks

Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Other liabilities

Note

oo~NO®

10
11
12
13
14
21A

15
16
17
18
19

Provision for off balance sheet items 30A

Provision for employee benefits
Deferred tax liabilities - net
Current income tax liability

Total liabilities

Shareholder’s equity

Share capital

Reserves

Regulatory reserves

Retained earnings

Currency translation reserves

Total shareholder’s equity

Total liabilities and
shareholder’s equity

20
21A
21B

22
23
24

Audited Financial Report

31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
US$ US$ KHR’000 KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
31,147,202 39,807,294 126,893,701 161,020,504
47 408,972 61,214,795 193,144,152 247,613,846
39,767,480 30,389,057 162,012,714 122,923,736
559,195431 435,313,594 2,278,162,186 1,760,843,488
2,347,731 2,027,281 9,564,656 8,200,352
25,470,692 25,633,400 103,767,599 103,687,103
6,720,181 4,264,875 27,378,017 17,251,419
5,769,484 6,642,901 23,504,878 26,870,535
1,068,112 499,060 4,351,488 2,018,698
- 151,793 - 614,004
718,895285 605,944,050 2,928,779,391 2,451,043,685
83,291,941 56,165,278 339,331,368 227,188,550
91,845,204 97852537 374,177,361 395,813,512
391,700,740 319,521,623 1,595,788,815 1,292,464,965
6,206,488 6,996,658 25,285,232 28,301,482
1,901,793 1,068,561 7,747,905 4,322,331
270,215 292 466 1,100,856 1,183,025
102,940 104,634 419,377 423,245
202,547 - 825,176 -
3,480,953 2,446,486 14,181,403 9,896,036
579,002,821 484,448,243 2,358,857,493 1,959,593,146
75,000,000 75,000,000 302,995,000 302,995,000
5,621,275 5,621,275 22,693,087 22,693,087
6,353,116 4,426,479 25,737,896 17,900,337
52,918,073 36,448,053 216,163,892 149,163,850
- - 2,332,023 (1,301,735)
139,892464 121495807 569,921.898 491,450,539
718,895285 605,944,050 2,928,779,391 2,451,043,685

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Audited Financial Report

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Net fee and commission income

Other operating income
Total operating income
Personnel expenses
Other operating expenses

Impairment losses on financial
instruments

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense
Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive
income/(loss)

Currency translation difference

Total comprehensive income

Note

25
26

27

28
29

32B(vi)

21C

2021 2020 2021 2020
US$ US$ KHR000 KHR000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
41368101 32654034 168285435 133130497
(6426635)  (8388143)  (26143551)  (34,198459)
34941466 24265801 142141884 98932038
1,450,469 1,003,745 5,900,508 4,092,268
21,297 403,858 86,636 1,646,530
36413232 25673494 148129028 104,670,836
(5710,876)  (4,503708) (23231,844) (18,361,618)
(6,571,396)  (4,839,660) (26,732438) (19,731,294)
(1103213)  (1202529)  (4487871)  (4902711)
23027747 15127507 93676875 61675213
4631090)  (2980665)  (18839274)  (12152,171)
18306657 12146932 74837601 49523042
- - 3633758  (3669,169)
18306657 12146932 78471359 45853873

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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About Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC.

Business Analysis & Planning

Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit for the year
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation
Loss on disposals of

property and equipment
Property and equipment written offs

Reversal of provision for employee benefits

Net interest income

Income tax expense

Net impairment loss on financial
instruments

Loss on exchange rate

Changes in:

Statutory deposits

Loans and advances to customers
Other assets

Deposits from customers

Deposits from other banks

Other liabilities

Cash used in operations

Interest received
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of intangible assets
Purchase of property and equipment
Proceed from disposal of

property and equipment
Investment in debt investments
Term deposit with banks

(term more than 3 months)

Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities
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2021 2020 2021 2020
uUs$ uUs$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)

18,396,657 12,146,932 74,837,601 49,523,042
1,940,170 1,794,447 7,892,611 7,315,960
223 2,171 907 8,851
302,528 707 1,230,684 2,882
(1,694) - (6,891) -
(34,941466) (24,265,891) (142,141,884)  (98,932,038)
4,631,090 2,980,665 18,839,274 12,152,171
1,103,213 1,202,529 4,487,871 4,902,711
186,588 - 759,040 -
(8,382,691) (6,138,440)  (34,100,787)  (25,026,421)
(9,357,990) 12,125,165  (38,068,303) 49,434,298
(125,896,798) (125915492) (512,148,174) (513,357,461)
(320,450) (1,005,243) (1,303,591) (4,098,376)
27,183,262 1,371,328 110,581,510 5,590,904
(5,912,842) (3,733,723)  (24,053441)  (15,222,389)
833,232 395,501 3,389,588 1,612,458
(121,854,277) (122,900,904) (495,703,198) (501,066,987)
42,491,413 32,645693 172,855,068 133,096,490
(6,054,229) (8,113,007) (24,628604) (33,076,730)
(3,242,283) (2,755,595)  (13,189,607)  (11,234,561)
(88,659,376) (101,123,813) (360,666,341) (412,281,788)
(642,145) (144,648) (2,612,246) (5689,730)
(3,839,392) (2,108,991)  (15,618,647) (8,598,356)
1,117 - 4,544 -
- (5,519,569) - (22,503,283)
13,522,286  (51,348,752) 55,008,659 (209,348,862)
9,041,866  (59,121,960) 36,782,310  (241,040,231)
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Business Analysis & Planning

Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Statement of cash flows (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Audited Financial Report

2021 2020 2021 2020
Us$ Us$ KHR000 KHR000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 390,549,337 317,846,724 1,588,754,703 1,295,861,094
Repayments of bormowings (318,893,716) (169,000,000) (1,297,259,637) (689,013,000)
Payment of lease liabilities (703,612) (466,957) (2,862,294) (1,903,784)
Net cash generated from
financing activities 70,952,009 148,379,767 288,632,772 604,944,310
Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents (8,665,501)  (11,866,006)  (35,251,259)  (48,377,709)
Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year 39,814,074 51,680,080 161,047,929 210,596,326
Currency translation difference - - 1,102,617 (1,170,688)
Cash and cash equivalents
31,148,573 39,814,074 126,899,287 161,047,929

at end of the year (Note 6)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial

statements.

1. Reporting entity
Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc. (previously known as Shinhan Khmer Bank Plc.) (the “Bank”) was
incorporated in the Kingdom of Cambodia on 27 June 2007 under Registration No. 00006043
issued by the Ministry of Commerce and officially commenced its operations on 15 October 2007.
On 24 February 2009, the Bank was granted a permanent banking licence No. 017 from the
National Bank of Cambodia (“NBC").

The registered address of the Bank is located at Vanda Tower No. 79, Kampuchea Krom Blvd,
Sangkat Monourom, Khan 7 Makara, Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia.

The Bank is a subsidiary of Shinhan Bank Co., Ltd., a Bank incorporated in Korea.

The Bank is principally engaged in the operation of core banking business and the provision of
related financial services.

As at 31 December 2021, the Bank had 402 employees (31 December 2020: 345 employees).

2. Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with the Cambodian
Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (“CIFRSSs”).

The accounting policies and methods of computation have been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these financial statements, except if mentioned otherwise (Note 35).

Details of the Bank’s significant accounting policies are included in Note 34.
These financial statements of the Bank were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
31 March 2022.

3. Functional and presentation currency
The Bank transacts its business and maintains its accounting records in United States Dollars
(“US$”). Management has determined the US$ to be the Bank'’s functional and presentation currency

as it reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances of the Bank.

These financial statements are presented in US$, which is the Bank’s functional currency. All US$
amounts have been rounded to the nearest dollars, unless otherwise indicated.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

4. Use of judgments and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the Bank’s accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates
are recognised prospectively.

A. Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

e Note 34C(ii): classification of financial assets: assessment of the business model within which
the assets are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are
SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

e Note 34C(vii): establishing the criteria for determining whether credit risk on the financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition, determining methodology for incorporating
forward-looking information into measurement of ECL and selection and approval of models used
to measure ECL.

B. Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are included in the following notes:

e Note 34C(vii): impairment of financial instruments: determining inputs into the ECL
measurement model, including incorporation of forward-looking information.

e Note 34C(vii): impairment of financial instruments: key assumptions used in estimating recoverable
cash flows.

e Note 34C(vi): determination of the fair value of financial instruments with significant unobservable
inputs.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

5. Translation of United States Dollars into Khmer Riel

The financial statements are expressed in United States Dollars (“US$”) which is the Bank’s
functional currency. The translations of US$ amounts into Khmer Riel (‘KHR”) meets the
presentation requirements pursuant to Law on Accounting and Auditing and has been done in
compliance with CIAS21 — The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.

Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate as at the reporting date and share capital and
other equity accounts are translated at the historical rate. The statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and cash flows are translated into KHR at the average rate for the year,
which has been deemed to approximate the exchange rate at the date of transaction as exchange
rates have not fluctuated significantly during the period. Exchange differences arising from the
translation are recognised as “Currency Translation Differences” in other comprehensive income.

The Bank uses the following exchange rates:

Closing Average
rate
31 December 2021 US$1 = KHRA4,074 KHR 4,068
31 December 2020 US$1 =

KHR 4,045 KHR 4,077

These convenience translations should not be construed as representations that the United States
Dollars amounts have been, could have been, or could in the future be, converted into Khmer Riels
at this or any other rate of exchange.

6. Cash and cash equivalents - net

31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020

US$ US$ KHR'000 KHR'000

(Note 5) (Note 5)
Cash on hand 10,670,960 6,232,811 43,473,491 25,211,720
Cash equivalents with other banks 3,081,009 18,082,198 12,552,031 73,142,491
Cash equivalents with NBC 17,396,604 15,499,065 70,873,765 62,693,718
31,148,573 39,814,074 126,899,287 161,047,929
Less: Impairment loss allowance (1,371) (6,780) (5,586) (27,425)
Cash and cash equivalents — net 31,147,202 39,807,294 126,893,701 161,020,504
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

6. Cash and cash equivalents - net (continued)

Audited Financial Report

Global Network

Including in the Cash equivalents with NBC, there is a Negotiable Certificate of Deposits (‘“NCD”)
amounting to US$370,000 that the Bank has pledged as collateral for Liquidity Providing
Collateralised Operation (“LPCQO”) (Note 17).

The movement of allowance for impairment loss is as follows:

2021 2020 2021 2020
Us$ uUs$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
At 1 January 6,780 - 27425 -
(Reversal)Allowance for the year (5,409) 6,780 (22004) 27,642
Currency translation difference - - 165 17)
At 31 December 1,371 6,780 5,586 27,425
7. Placements with other banks - net
31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
US$ US$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Term deposits:
- Negotiable Certificate of
Deposits (‘NCD”) 14,060,000 31,460,000 57,280,440 127,255,700
- Other banks 27,004,234 29,888,752  110,015249 120,900,002
- Related parties (Note 31C) 6,500,000 - 26,481,000 -
47,564,234 61,348,752 193,776,689 248,155,702
Less: Impaiment loss allowance (155,262) (133,957) (632,537) (541,856)
47,408,972 61,214,795 193144152 247,613,846

During 2021, the Bank has pledged the above NCD amounting to US$13,860,000 with the NBC
as collateral for Liquidity Providing Collateralised Operation (‘LPCQO”) (Note 17).
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

7.
i)

Placements with other banks — net (continued)

The movements of impairment loss allowance is as follows:

At 1 January
Allowance for the year
Currency translation difference

At 31 December

By interest rate (per annum):

NBC
Other banks

Statutory deposits

Capital guarantee deposit

Reserve requirements on
customers’ deposits and
other banks’ deposits

Capital guarantee deposit

Audited Financial Report

Global Network

2021 2020 2021 2020
USs$ US$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
133,957 - 541,856 -
21,305 133,957 86,669 546,143
- - 4,012 (4,287)
155,262 133,957 632,537 541,856
2021 2020

0.02% - 0.80%
0.04% - 6.30%

0.07% - 0.46%
1.25% - 4.90%

31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
Us$ Us$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
7,500,000 7,500,000 30,555,000 30,337,501
32,267,480 22,889,057 131,457,714 92,586,235
39,767,480 30,389,057 162,012,714 122,923,736

Under the NBC’s Prakas No. B7-01-136 dated 15 October 2001, the Bank is required to maintain
a statutory deposit 10% of its capital. This deposit is not available for use in the Bank’s day-to-day
operations and is refundable should the Bank voluntarily cease its operations in Cambodia. Capital
guarantee deposit bear interest at a rate of 0.06% (2020: 0.06%) per annum.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

8. Statutory deposits (continued)

B. Reserve requirements on customers’ deposits and other banks’ deposits

This is a reserve requirement which fluctuates depending on the level of the Bank’s customers’
deposits and other banks’ deposits. Itis maintained in compliance with the National Bank of Cambodia’s
Prakas No. B7-012-140 dated 27 September 2012 at the rates of 8.00% of daily average deposits
from customers and other banks in KHR and 12.50% in currency other than KHR and bear no
interest effective from 29 August 2018.

The National Bank of Cambodia (“NBC”) issued a Prakas dated 18 March 2020 announcing the
reduction of the Reserve Requirements Rate (‘RRR”) on KHR and foreign currencies to 7%.

9. Loans and advances to customers — net

31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
USs$ US$ KHR’000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Commercial loans:
Overdrafts 17,780,056 18,971,081 72,435,948 76,738,023
Short term loans 11,333,273 11,304,388 46,171,754 45,726,249
Long term loans 439,372,278 309,683,151 1,790,002,661 1,252,668,346
Consumer loans 93,491,529 97,007,007 380,884,489 392,393,343
Gross loans and advances to
customers 561,977,136 436,965,627 2,289,494,852 1,767,525,961
Less: Impaimment loss allowance (2,781,705) (1,652,033) (11,332,666) (6,682,473)
Loans and advances to
customers - net 559,195,431 435,313,594 2,278,162,186 1,760,843,488

The movements of impairment losses allowance is as follows:

2021 2020 2021 2020
uUs$ USs$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
At 1 January 1,652,033 399,075 6,682473 1,626,230
Allowance for the year 1,129,672 1,252,958 4,595,506 5,108,310
Currency translation difference - - 54,687 (52,067)
At 31 December 2,781,705 1,652,033 11,332,666 6,682,473
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

9. Loans and advances to customers — net (continued)

Gross amounts of loans and advances to customers by contractual maturity are as follows:

31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
Us$ Us$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Within 1 month 20,318,936 19,047,168 82,779,345 77,045,795
> 1 to 3 months 31,702 31,702 129,154 128,235
> 3 to 12 months 40,174,613 30,185,744 163,671,373 122,101,334
>1to5years 17,951,657 29,389,715 73,135,051 118,881,397
Over 5 years 483,500,228 358,311,298  1969,779929  1,449,369,200

561977136 436,965,627 2,289,494,852 1,767,525,961

For additional analysis of gross amount of loans and advances to customers, refer to Note 32B.

10. Other assets

31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
Us$ US$ KHR’000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)

Other receivables 157,520 446,181 641,737 1,804,802
Prepayments of employee benefits 1,392,424 787,666 5,672,735 3,186,109
Prepayments and deposits 772,787 768,434 3,148,334 3,108,316
Equity investment (*) 25,000 25,000 101,850 101,125

2,347,731 2,027,281 9,564,656 8,200,352

(*) Equity investment represents the indirect investment in Credit Bureau Cambodia (credit
information company) through the Association of Banks in Cambodia. During the year, the
Bank received a dividend amounting to US$19,421 (2020: US$19,372).
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

11. Debt investments

31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
US$ US$ KHR'000 KHR’000

(Note 5) (Note 5)

9,962,542 10,033,967 40,587,396 40,587,397
10,110,221 10,182,705 41,189,040 41,189,042
1,493,938 1,504,648 6,086,303 6,086,301
3,932,441 3,960,634 16,020,765 16,020,764

25,499,142 25,681,954 103,883,504 103,883,504
Less: Impairment loss allowance (28,450) (48,554) (115,905) (196,401)
25470692 25,633,400 103,767,599 103,687,103

LOLC (Cambodia) PIc. (i
Advanced Bank of Asia Limited (ii
Prasac Microfinance Institution Plc. ~ (iii

Phnom Penh Commercial Bank Plc. (iv

=~

~

Corporate Bonds classified at amortised costs are in Khmer Riels (‘KHR”) denomination and have
a nominal value of KHR100,000 per bond.

(i) On 26 Aprii 2019, the Bank bought 400,000 of FX-Indexed Bonds, equivalent to
KHR40,000,000,000, issued by LOLC (Cambodia) Plc. The Bonds have interest rate of 8%
p.a. for three years (2019 - 2022) effective from 26 April 2019 and are payable semi-annually
in arrears on 26 October and 26 April each year, with the first interest payment to be made on
26 October 2019. Interest on the bonds is computed on the basis of a 365-day/year.

(i) On 14 August 2019, the Bank bought 400,000 Bonds, equivalent to KHR40,000,000,000, issued
by Advanced Bank of Asia Limited. The Bonds have interest rate of 7.75% p.a. for three years
(2019 - 2022) effective from 14 August 2019 and are payable semi-annually in arrears on 14
February and 14 August each year, with the first interest payment to be made on 14 February 2020.
Interest on the bonds is computed on the basis of a 365-day/year.

(i) On 23 April 2020, the Bank bought 60,000 Bonds, equivalent to KHR6,000,000,000, issued by
Prasac Microfinance Institution Plc. The Bonds have interest rate of 7.50% p.a. for three years
(2020 - 2023) effective from 23 April 2020 and are payable semiannually in arrears on 23 October
and 23 April each year, with the first interest payment to be made on 23 October 2020. Interest on
the bonds is computed on the basis of a 365-day/year.

(iv) On 23 September 2020, the Bank bought 157,377 of FX-Indexed Bonds, equivalent to
KHR15,737,700,000, issued by Phnom Penh Commercial Bank Plc. The Bonds have interest rate
of 6.50% p.a. for three years (2020 - 2023) effective from 23 October 2020 and are payable semi
annually in arrears on 22 March and 22 September each year, with the first interest payment to be
made on 22 March 2021. Interest on the bonds is computed on the basis of a 365-day/year.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

11. Debt investments (continued)

The movements of impairment loss allowance is as follows:

At 1 January
Reversal for the year
Currency translation difference

At 31 December
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2021 2020 2021 2020
US$ US$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
48,554 532,186 196401 2,168,658
(20,104) (483,632) (81,783) (1,971,768)
- - 1,287 (489)
28,450 48,554 115,905 196,401
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2021

13.

14.

Right-of-use assets

Costs

At 1 January

Additions

Reversals

Currency translation difference

At 31 December

Less: Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January

Depreciation for the year
Reversals

Currency translation difference

At 31 December

Carrying amounts
At 31 December

Intangible assets

Computer Software

Cost

At 1 January

Additions

Transfer from property and equipment
Currency translation difference

At 31 December

Less: Accumulated amortisation

At 1 January
Amortisation
Currency translation difference

At 31 December

Carrying amounts
At 31 December

Audited Financial Report

Global Network

2021 2020 2021 2020
US$ US$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
7,926,159 4323215 32,061,313 17,617,101
220,034 3,602,944 895,098 14,689,203
(529,239) - (2152,944) -
- - 228,004 (244,991)
7,616,954 7,926,159 31,031,471 32,061,313
1,283,258 717,490 5,190,778 2,923,772
786,859 565,768 3,200,942 2,306,636
(222,647) - (905,728) -
- - 40,601 (39,630)
1,847 470 1,283,258 7,526,593 5,190,778
5,769,484 6,642,901 23,504,878 26,870,535
2021 2020 2021 2020
US$ US$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
620,598 475,950 2,510,319 1,939,496
642,145 144,648 2,612,246 589,730
5,543 - 22,549 -
- - 21,883 (18,907)
1,268,286 620,598 5,166,997 2,510,319
121,538 68,821 491,621 280,445
78,636 52,717 319,891 214,927
- - 3,997 (3,751)
200,174 121,538 815,509 491,621
1,068,112 499,060 4,351,488 2,018,698
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

15. Deposits from customers

31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
uUs$ uUs$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Saving accounts 32,834,468 29,365,021 133,767,623 118,781,510
Fixed deposits 27,831,613 15,155,678 113,385,991 61,304,718
Demand deposits 22,625,860 11,644,579 92,177,754 47,102,322
83,291,941 56,165,278 339,331,368 227,188,550
Deposits from customers are analysed as follows:
31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
US$ US$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
By maturity:
Within 1 month 56,540,098 41,115,002 230,344,359 166,310,183
> 1 to 3 months 298,505 2,273,287 1,216,109 9,195,446
>3 to 12 months 24,993,815 11,686,581 101,824,802 47,272,220
> 1 year 1,459,523 1,090,408 5,946,098 4,410,701
83,291,941 56,165,278 339,331,368 227,188,550
By customer type:
Individuals 31,819,836 33,715,691 129,634,012 136,379,970
Business enterprises 51,472,105 22,449,587 209,697,356 90,808,580
83,291,941 56,165,278 339,331,368 227,188,550
By residency status:
Residents 77,989,934 51,458,647 317,730,991 208,150,228
Non-residents 5,302,007 4,706,631 21,600,377 19,038,322
83,291,941 56,165,278 339,331,368 227,188,550
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

15. Deposits from customers (continued)

D. By interestrate (per annum):

Saving accounts
Fixed deposits

0.10% - 2.70%
1.25% - 6.40%

Audited Financial Report

2020

0.10%-2.70%
1.25% -7.00%

The demand deposits are interest free and are encumbered for trade line and guarantee granted

to customers.

16. Deposits from other banks

31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
Us$ Us$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)

Saving deposits 57,912 153,415 235,934 620,564
Demand deposits 604,961 521,198 2,464,611 2,108,245
Fixed deposits 91,182,331 97177924 371,476,816 393,084,703
91,845,204 97,852,537 374,177,361 395,813,512

Deposits from other banks are analysed as follows:

2021 2020 2021 2020
Us$ uUs$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
A. By maturity:
Within 1 month 947,249 674,612 3,859,092 2,728,806
> 1 to 3 months 13,745,704 14,658,319 55,999,998 59,292,900
>3 to 12 months 77,152,251 82,519,606 314,318,271 333,791,806
91,845,204 97,852,537 374177,361 395,813,512
B. Byrelationship:

Related parties (Note 31C) 54,778 349,727 223,166 1,414,646
Non-related parties 91,790,426 97,502,810 373,954,195 394,398,866
91,845,204 97,852,537 374,177,361 395,813,512
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

16. Deposits from other banks (continued)

Deposits from other banks are analysed as follows: (continued)

By residency status:

Residents
Non-residents

By interest rate (per annum):

Audited Financial Report
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Saving deposits
Demand deposits

2021 2020 2021 2020
US$ US$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
91,790,426 97,502,810 373,954,195 394,398,866
54,778 349,727 223,166 1,414,646
91,845,204 97,852,537 374,177,361 395,813,512
2021 2020
0.10% - 1.00% 0.10% - 1.00%
Nil Nil

1.00% -4.75%

2.15% -4.35%

17.

Fixed deposits

Borrowings

Shinhan Bank Co., Ltd.

Shinhan Bank, Hongkong Branch

Shinhan Bank, London Branch
National Bank of Cambodia (*)

31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020

US$ US$ KHR'000 KHR'000

(Note 5) (Note 5)
276,816,654 218,026,951 1,127,751,048 881,919,017
101,121,835 55,177,433 411,970,356 223,192,716
- 10,134,000 - 40,992,030
13,762,251 36,183,239 56,067,411 146,361,202
391,700,740 319,521,623 1595788815 1,292464,965

The borrowings are unsecured and bear interest rates ranging from 0.26% to 5.50% (2020: 0.30% to

5.02%) per annum.

(*) These refer to Liquidity Providing Collateralised Operation (“LPCQO”) from the National Bank of
Cambodia in which the Negotiable Certificate of Deposits amounting to US$14,230,000 were

collateralised (Notes 6&7).
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

17. Borrowings (continued)

Further analysis by remaining contract maturity are as follows:

Within 1 month
> 1 to 3 months
> 3 to 12 months
> 12 months

Audited Financial Report
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31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020

US$ US$ KHR'000 KHR’000

(Note 5) (Note 5)
37,428,099 30,068,230 152,482,075 121,625,990
61,450,128 110,943,267 250,347 821 448765515
176,522,799 148,458,523 719,153,883 600,514,726
116,299,714 30,051,603 473,805,036 121,558,734
391,700,740 319,521,623 1595788815 1,292464,965

The reconciliation of movements of borrowings to cash flows arising from financing activities is as

follows:

At 1 January

Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Interest expense

Interest paid

Curmency translation difference

At 31 December

2021 2020 2021 2020
US$ US$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
319,521,623 170405358 1292464965 694,401,834
390,549,337 317,846,724 1,588,754,703 1,295,861,0%4
(318,893,716)  (169,000,000) (1,297,259,637) (689,013,000)
3,606,925 4,665,953 14,672,971 19,023,090
(3,083,429) 4,396412) (12543389)  (17,924172)
- - 9,699,202 (9,883,881)
391,700,740 319521623 1,595,788,815 1,292,464,965
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18. Lease liabilities

Audited Financial Report

Global Network

31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
uUs$ uUs$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Maturity analysis — contractual
undiscounted cash flows
Less than one year 1,112,035 1,146,679 4,530,431 4,638,317
One to five years 5,350,062 4,459,145 21,796,153 18,037,242
More than five years 1,622,557 3,952,405 6,610,297 15987478
Total undiscounted lease
liabilities 8,084,654 9,558,229 32,936,881 38,663,037
Present value of lease liabilities
Current 695,982 276,054 2835431 1,116,638
Non-current 5,510,506 6,720,604 22,449,801 27,184,844
6,206,488 6,996,658 25,285,232 28,301,482
Amounts recognised in profit and loss
2021 2020 2021 2020
Us$ Us$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Interest expense on lease
liabilities (Note 26) 416,739 325,843 1,695,294 1,328,462
Expense relating to short-term
leases (Note 29) 300,743 267,286 1,223,423 1,089,725
Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows
2021 2020 2021 2020
Us$ us$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Total cash outflow for leases (1,120,351) (792,800) (4,557588)  (3,232,246)
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19.

20.

Other liabilities

Audited Financial Report

31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
Us$ Us$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Other tax payables 786,767 734,746 3,205,289 2,972,048
Amounts due to related parties
(Note 31C) 638,000 - 2,599,212 -
Accruals and other payables 477,026 333,815 1,943 404 1,350,283
1,901,793 1,068,561 7,747,905 4,322,331
Provision for employee benefits
2021 2020 2021 2020
US$ US$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
At 1 January 104,634 104,634 423245 426,384
Reversal during the year (1,694) - (6,891) -
Currency translation difference - - 3,023 (3139)
At 31 December 102,940 104,634 419377 423245

This represents provision for seniority indemnity payments required by Prakas No. 443 issued by the
Ministry of Labour and Vocational Training (“MoLVT”) on 21 September 2018, and subsequently
amended by the Instruction No. 042/19 dated 22 March 2019. It requires all employers to settle the

seniority indemnity to their employee as follows:

e Current pay: starting from 2019 onwards at the amounts equal to 15 days of wages and other

benefits per year.

e Retrospective (back-pay): starting from the end of 2021 onwards at the amounts equal to 6 days of
net wages per year. The provision of back-pay seniority indemnity is calculated at a maximum
amount of 6 months net wages (depends on the length of the service employee served) to the

employee who has seniority before 2019.
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20. Provision for employee benefits (continued)

21.

Audited Financial Report
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Payments will be made twice a year, in June and December respectively. Employee does not entitle to
the remaining back-pay seniority indemnity which is not yet due, if he/she resigns from the Bank.

On 2 June 2020, the MoLVT issued Prakas No. 018/20 for the postponement of seniority indemnity
back-pay for periods before 2019 and postponement of seniority indemnity current pay in 2020. Under
this new measure, both the issuance of seniority indemnity back-pay for periods before 2019, and the
issuance of seniority indemnity current pay for 2020 are to be paid in 2022. The Bank chose to pay the
current pay in each year and deferred the back pay to June 2022.

Income tax

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets — net

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets — net

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets are attributable to the following:

Allowance for loan losses
Lease liabilities

Employee benefits

Deferred income from loans
Depreciation and amortisation
Right-of-use assets

Tax (liabilties)/assets
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31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
Us$ Us$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
1,305,876 1,866,836 5,320,139 7,551,352
(1,508,423) (1,715,043) (6,145,315) (6,937,348)
(202,547) 151,793 (825,176) 614,004
31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
US$ US$ KHR’000 KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
39,874 172,330 162,447 697,075
1,241,298 1,399,331 5,057,048 5,660,294
24,704 20,927 100,644 84,650
(14,212) 274,248 (57,900) 1,109,333
(340,314) (386,463) (1,386,439) (1,563,242)
(1,153,897) (1,328,580) (4,700,976) (5,374,106)
(202,547) 151,793 (825,176) 614,004
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

21. Income tax (continued)

A. Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets — net

The movements of deferred tax are as follows:

2021 2020 2021 2020
Us$ Us$ KHR'000 KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
At 1 January 151,793 - 614,004 -
Recognised in profit or loss (354,340) 151,793 (1,441455) 618,860
Currency translation differences - - 2,275 (4,856)
At 31 December (202,547) 151,793 (825,176) 614,004
B. Currentincome tax liability
2021 2020 2021 2020
Us$ US$ KHR’000 KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
At 1 January 2,446,486 2,069,623 9,896,036 8433714
Charge to profit or loss 4.276,750 3,132,458 17,397,819 12,771,031
Income tax paid (3,242,283) (2,755,595)  (13,189,607) (11,234,561)
Currency translation difference - - 77,155 (74,148)
At 31 December 3,480,953 2446486 14,181,403 9,896,036

In accordance with Cambodian Law on Taxation, the Company has an obligation to pay corporate
income tax of either the profit tax at the rate of 20% of taxable income or the minimum tax at 1% of
gross income, whichever is higher.

C. Income tax expense

2021 2020 2021 2020
US$ US$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Current income tax 4,276,750 3,132,458 17,397,819 12,771,031
Deferred tax 354,340 (151,793) 1,441,455 (618,860)

4,631,090 2,980,665 18,839,274 12,152,171
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

22. Share capital

31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
US$ US$ KHR'000 KHR’000

(Note 5) (Note 5)

Registered, issued and fully paid up of
75 million shares at par value of
US$1 per share 75,000,000 75,000,000 302,995,000 302,995,000

The detail of the Bank’s shareholders and their respective interests are as follows:

31 December 2021/2020
Registered, issued and fully paid

Number Amount %
of shares us$
Shinhan Bank Co., Ltd. 73,125,000 73,125,000 97.50%
Insung Co., Ltd. 1,875,000 1,875,000 2.50%
75,000,000 75,000,000 100%

23. Reserves

According to shareholders’ resolution dated 30 December 2014, the Bank has transferred part of its
retained eamings amounting to US$5,621,275 to a non-distributable reserves account.

24. Regulatory reserves

Regulatory reserves represented the variance of between the allowance forimpairment on financial
instruments in accordance with CIFRSs and regulatory provision in accordance with the National
Bank of Cambodia requirements. As at 31 December 2021, the Bank transferred from retained
eamings to regulatory reserves of US$1,926,637 (2020: US$685,864).
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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24. Regulatory reserves (continued)

Cash and cash

Audited Financial Report

equivalent and Loan and
placements with  advances to Debt Off balance
other banks customers  investments sheetitems Total
Us$ US$ US$ US$ US$
31 December 2021
Allowance per NBC 356,963 8,789,301 249,724 194,131 9,590,119
Allowance per CIFRS 9 (156,633)  (2,781,705) (28,450) (270,215)  (3,237,003)
Regulatory reserves 200,330 6,007,596 221,274 (76,084) 6,353,116
(KHR'000 — Note 5) 25,737,896
31 December 2020
Allowance per NBC 478,289 5,644,847 251,515 185,618 6,560,269
Allowance per CIFRS 9 (140,737)  (1,652,033) (48,554) (292,466) (2,133,790)
Regulatory reserves 337,552 3,992,814 202,961 (106,848) 4426479
(KHR'000 — Note 5) 17,900,337
Transfer from regulatory reserves to retained eamings 1,926,637
(KHR'000 — Note 5) 7,837,559
25. Interest income
2021 2020 2021 2020
Us$ Us$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)

Loans and advances to customers 38,429,388 30,037,560 156,330,750 122,463,133
Debt investments 1,923,560 1,706,174 7,825,043 6,956,071
Placement with other banks 964,649 727,828 3,924,192 2,967,355
Placements with the NBC 50,504 182472 205450 743,938
41,368,101 32,654,034 168285435 133,130,497
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

26. Interest expense

27.

28.
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2021 2020 2021 2020
uUs$ Us$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Saving accounts 142584 91,570 580,032 373,331
Fixed deposit from third parties 2,260,387 3,304,777 9,195,254 13,473,576
Borrowings:
— Related parties (Note 31B) 2,565,714 4,058,459 10,437,325 16,546,337
—NBC 1,041,211 607,4% 4,235,646 2,476,753
Interest expense on lease
liabilities (Note 18) 416,739 325,843 1,695,294 1,328,462
6,426,635 8,388,143 26,143,551 34,198,459
Net fee and commission income
2021 2020 2021 2020
Us$ Us$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Service charge 713,034 441,193 2,900,622 1,798,744
Inward and outward remittance 521,376 514,216 2,120,958 2,096,459
Other fees 216,059 48,336 878,928 197,065
1,450,469 1,003,745 5,900,508 4,092,268
Personnel expenses
2021 2020 2021 2020
us$ Us$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Salaries and wages 5,261,232 4,041,816 21,402,692 16,478,484
Other benefits 449 644 461,892 1,829,152 1,883,134
5,710,876 4,503,708 23,231,844 18,361,618
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

29. Other operating expenses

30.

Depreciation and amortisation
Marketing expense

License fees

Professional fees

Staff accommodation (Note 18)
Office supplies

Utilities expenses
Communication

Travelling and entertainment
Repairs and maintenance
Insurance expense

Other tax expenses

Other expenses

Audited Financial Report

2021 2020 2021 2020

Us$ uUs$ KHR'000 KHR'000

(Note 5) (Note 5)
1,940,170 1,794,447 7,892,611 7,315,960
1,928,657 845,788 7845777 3,448,278
412,405 324,941 1,677,664 1,324,784
303,111 229,651 1,233,056 936,287
300,743 267,286 1,223423 1,089,725
256,319 163,535 1,042,706 666,732
221,466 174,661 900,923 712,093
157,241 218,069 639,656 889,067
133,260 74,091 542,102 302,069
96,004 137,775 390,544 561,709
87,613 84,767 356,409 345,595
1,074 79,465 4,369 323,979
733,333 445184 2,983,198 1,815,016
6,571,396 4,839,660 26,732,438 19,731,244

Commitments and contingencies

Operations

In the nomal course of business, the Bank makes various commitments and incurs certain
contingencies with legal recourse to its customers. No material losses are anticipated from these

transactions, which consist of:

Unused portion of credit facilities
Foreign exchange commitments
Loan commitments

Bankers’ guarantees
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31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020

US$ USs$ KHR'000 KHR'000

(Note 5) (Note 5)
9,359,326 12,252,932 38,129,894 49,563,110
13,681,321 13,779,407 55,737,702 55,737,701
10,042,093 6,263,324 40,911,487 25,335,146
5,500 45,500 22407 184,048
33,088,240 32,341,163 134,801,490 130,820,005
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

30. Commitments and contingencies (continued)

A. Operations (continued)

The movements of allowance for impairment loss is as follows:

2021 2020 2021 2020
USs$ US$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
At 1 January 292,466 - 1,183,025 -
(Reversal)/Allowance for the year (22,251) 292,466 (90,517) 1,192,334
Currency translation difference - - 8,348 (9,359)
At 31 December 270,215 292,466 1,100,856 1,183,025
B. Capital commitments
31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
US$ US$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Construction contract 741,449 619,938 3,020,663 2,507,649

C. Tax contingencies

The General Department of Taxation (‘GDT”) issued a notice of tax reassessment to the Bank to
pay reassessed taxes as summarised below:

Tax Balance
reassessment accepted by the Tax
by GDT Bank contingencies
(KHR'000) (KHR'000) (KHR'000)

13 March 2017

- For fiscal year 2015 (limited) 614,544 - 614,544
3 May 2021

- For the period from 1 January

2019 to 30 April 2020 (limited) 69,451 - 69,451
Total (KHR'000) 683,995 - 683,995
In US$ equivalent 167,893 - 167,893
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

30. Commitments and contingencies (continued)

C. Tax contingencies (continued)
Fiscal year 2010 — 2012 (comprehensive tax audit)

On 4 July 2017, the Bank received tax reassessment letter from comprehensive tax auditor imposing
underpayment of taxes amounting to KHR2,246,240 thousand (approximate to US$561,560). On
14 August 2017, the Bank filed the tax administrative protest letter to the GDT protesting to the
reassessed taxes. On 11 November 2020, the Bank received a response letter from the GDT on
the imposed of revised tax reassessment for the fiscal years 2010, 2011 and 2012 amounting to
KHR311,530 thousand (approximate to US$77,883). Subsequently, the Bank filed second
administrative protest letter to the GDT to protest to the 2nd reassessment letter on 18 December 2020.

On 5 January 2022, the Bank has fully paid its tax liabilities, mentioned above to the GDT
amounting to KHR283,360,579 (approximate to US$70,000).

Fiscal year 2015 (limited tax audit)

On 13 March 2017, the Bank received tax reassessment letter from limited tax auditor imposing
underpayment of taxes amounting to KHR614,544 thousand (approximate to US$150,845). On
21 April 2017, the Bank filed the tax administrative protest letter to the GDT protesting to the
reassessed taxes.

The tax reassessment balance has not been recorded in the financial statements as the Bank
believes that there are reasonable grounds to challenge the assessment as stated in the tax law
and regulations as well as industry practices, as indicated in its objection letter.

Fiscal year 2019 — 2020 (limited tax audit)

On 3 May 2021, the Bank received tax reassessment letter from limited tax audit period from 1
January 2019 to 30 April 2020 imposing underpayment of taxes amounting to KHR69,450,852
(approximately US$17,047). On 21 June 2021, the Bank filed the tax administrative protest letter
to the GDT protesting to the reassessed taxes.

The tax reassessment balance has not been recorded in the financial statements as the Bank

believes that there are reasonable grounds to challenge the assessment as stated in the tax law
and regulations as well as industry practices, as indicated in its objection letter.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

30. Commitments and contingencies (continued)

C. Tax contingencies (continued)
Fiscal year 2019 — 2020 (comprehensive tax audit)

On 8 April 2021, the Bank received a tax notification letter from the GDT for the purpose of
conducting a comprehensive tax audit for the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2020.
As of the date of this report, the Bank has not received any result from the GDT yet.

The tax retums of the Bank are subject to periodic examination by the tax authorities. As the
application of tax laws and regulations to various types of transactions is susceptible to varying
interpretations, amounts reported in the financial statements of the Bank could be changed at a
later date, upon final determination by the tax authorities.

31. Related parties

A. Identity of related party

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Bank if
the Bank has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence
over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Bank and
the party are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may be
individuals or other entities.

The Bank have related party relationships with its substantial shareholders, companies in common
control and key management personnel.

Key management personnel are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Bank either directly or indirectly. The key
management personnel include all the Directors of the Bank, and certain senior management
members of the Bank.

Key management have banking relationships with Bank entities which are entered into in the normal
course of business and on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and security, as for
comparable transactions with other persons of a similar standing or, where applicable, with other
employees. These transactions did not involve more than the normal risk of repayment or present other
unfavourable features.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

31. Related parties (continued)

B.

Transactions with related parties

Interest expense - Borrowings

Shinhan Bank Co., Ltd.
Shinhan Bank, Hong Kong Branch
Shinhan Bank, London Branch

Proceeds - Borrowings

Shinhan Bank Co., Ltd.
Shinhan Bank, Hong Kong Branch
Shinhan Bank, London Branch

Repayments - Borrowings

Shinhan Bank Co., Ltd.
Shinhan Bank, Hong Kong Branch
Shinhan Bank, London Branch

Interestincome
Shinhan Bank, Hong Kong Branch

Management service
Shinhan Bank Co., Ltd.

Advisory service
Shinhan Bank Co., Ltd.

Compensation of directors

Directors' fees and remuneration
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2021 2020 2021 2020

uUs$ uUs$ KHR'000 KHR'000

(Note 5) (Note 5)
2,170,533 3,643,913 8,829,728 14,856,233
326,506 279,988 1,328,226 1,141,511
68,675 134,558 279,371 548,593
2,565,714 4,058,459 10,437,325 16,546,337
246,000,000 217,000,000 1,000,728,000 884,709,000
101,000,000 55,000,000 410,868,000 224,235,000
- 10,000,000 - 40,770,000
(187,000,000) (169,000,000) (760,716,000) (689,013,000)
(565,000,000) - (223,740,000) -
(10,000,000) - (40,680,000) -
3412 - 13,880 -
855,466 - 3,480,036 -
108,000 - 439,344 -
1,831,724 1,306,377 7,451,453 5,326,099
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

31. Related party (continued)

C. Balances with related parties

31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
Us$ Us$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Shinhan Bank, Hong Kong Branch
Placements with other banks (Note 7) 6,500,000 - 26,481,000 -
Shinhan Bank Co., Ltd.
Deposits from related party (Note 16) 54,778 349,727 223,166 1,414,646
Amounts due to related parties
(Note 19) 558,000 - 2,273,292 -
Amounts due to directors (Note 19) 80,000 - 325,920 -

The amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured and repayable on demand.
Borrowings from related parties

The balance of borrowings from related parties are disclosed in Note 17.

32. Financial risk management

A. Introduction and overview

The Bank has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments:

e credit risk;

o marketrisk;

¢ liquidity risk; and
e operational risk.

This note presents information about the Bank’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Bank’s

objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Bank’s management of
capital.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

32. Financial risk management (continued)

A. Introduction and overview (continued)

For the purpose of preserving the financial stability and reduce the burden of the borrowers who are
losing their primary incomes and facing difficulties in repayment during the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic, the Bank works constructively with affected borrowers and allows for loan restructuring.
Loan restructuring is proposed by the relationship team and approved by the Bank's Risk
Department, which shall regularly conduct a portfolio review of affected borrowers to measure the
impact on their financial conditions during the pandemic.

Risk management functional and governance structure

The Bank does not use derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange contract and
interest rate swaps to manage its risk exposures.

The Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Bank’s
risk management. The Board of Directors have established the Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee which are responsible for developing and monitoring Bank risk
management policies in their specified areas. All Board committees have both executive and non-
executive members and report regularly to the Board of Directors on their activities.

The Risk Management Committee was established to assist the Board of Directors in its role and
responsibilities over risk management and compliance of the Bank relating to risks in business
operations and risk monitoring process. These include risk identification, risk management, risk
monitoring and effective compliance with laws and regulations in accordance with the Bank’s risk
management policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Risk Management Committee also
assist the Board of Directors to ensure that policies, charters and guidelines are in place in order to
assess, evaluate and mitigate the risks pertaining to new products/new activities to be introduced.
The Risk Management and Compliance Department plays an important role on a day-to-day basis
in assisting the Risk Management and Compliance Committee to monitor the potential risks
associated with the operations of the Bank and its branches and compliance controls of the Bank
to meet the requirements of laws and regulations including laws and Prakas on Anti-Money
Laundering and Combating the Financing of Terrorism set out by the NBC.

The Audit Committee is assisted in these functions by Intemal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both
regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are
reported to the Audit Committee. In addition, the Audit Committee monitors and evaluates the
efficiency of the management structure, policies and procedures, activities and operations of the
Bank as well as compliance with laws and regulations.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

32. Financial risk management (continued)

B. Creditrisk

‘Credit risk’ is the risk of financial loss to the Bank if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Bank’s loans and
advances to customers and other banks, and investment debt securities. For risk management
reporting purposes, the Bank considers and consolidates all elements of credit risk exposure —e.g.
individual obligor default risk, country and sector risk.

Credit risk is the potential loss of revenue and principal losses arising mainly from loans and
advances and loan commitments as a result of default by the borrowers or counterparties through
its lending activities.

(i). Management of credit risk

The lending activities are guided by the Bank’s credit policy to ensure that the overall objectives in
the area of lending are achieved; i.e., that the loan portfolio is strong and healthy, and credit risks
are well diversified. The credit policy documents the lending policy, collateral policy and credit
approval processes, including the Bank’s own internal credit risk rating system, and procedures
implemented to ensure compliance with NBC Guidelines.

The Bank has established the Core Credit Risk Policy which is designed to govern the Bank'’s risk
undertaking activities. Extension of credit is governed by credit programs that set out the plan for a
particular product or portfolio, including the target market, terms and conditions, documentation and
procedures under which a credit product will be offered and measured.

Credit risk ratings are reviewed and updated on an annual basis, and in events of (i) change of loan
terms and conditions including extension; (ii) repayment irregularities or delinquencies and (iii)
adverse information relating to the borrower or transaction.

(ii).  Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Bank operates and provides loans to individuals or enterprises within the Kingdom of
Cambodia. The Bank manages limits and controls concentration of credit risk whenever they are
identified. Large exposure is defined by the NBC as overall credit exposure to any individual
beneficiary which exceeds 10% of the Bank’s net worth.

The Bank is required, unless prior approval from the NBC is obtained, under the conditions of
Prakas No. B7-06-226 of the NBC to maintain at all times a maximum ratio of 20% between the
Bank’s overall credit exposure to any individual beneficiary and the Bank’s net worth. The
aggregation of large credit exposure must not exceed 300% of the Bank’s net worth.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

32. Financial risk management (continued)

B. Credit risk (continued)

(ii). Risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

To manage the exposure risk, the Bank has closely monitored on large credits, impaired credits
and the overall level of provisioning on a regular basis and upon requested by the Risk
Management Committee. To protect the Bank from the non-compliance on the large exposure, the
Board of Directors adopted the alert limits of 15% for single borrower and 250% for the aggregation
of the large credit exposure.

The Bank employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most traditional of
these is the taking of security in the form of collateral for loans to customers, which is common
practice. The Bank implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral. The
principal collateral types to secure for loans to customers are:

¢ Hypothec/mortgages over residential and business properties (land, buildings and other properties);
and
e Cash in the form of fixed and margin deposits.

(ii). Concentration of risk

The Board of Directors created the Bank Credit Committee for the oversight of credit risk. A
separate Bank Credit department, reporting to the Bank Credit Committee, is responsible for
managing the Bank’s credit risk, including the following.

The following table presents the Bank’s maximum exposure to credit risk of on-balance sheet and
off-balance sheet financial instruments, without taking into account of any collateral held or other
credit enhancements. For on-balance sheet assets, the exposure to credit risk equals their carrying
amount. For contingent liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount that
the Bank would have to pay if the obligations of the instruments issued are called upon. For credit
commitments, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the full amount of the undrawn credit facilities
granted to customers.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2021

32. Financial risk management (continued)

B.
(iii).

Credit risk (continued)

Concentration of risk (continued)

Audited Financial Report

Concentration risk by residency and relationship, large-exposures and concession for

loans and advances:

By residency status:

Residents
Non-residents

By relationship:
External customers
Staff loans

By exposure:
Large exposures (*)

Non-large exposures

By concession:

Restructure (**)
Non-restructure

31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
US$ US$ KHR'000 KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)

561,415,956 436,164,164 2,287,208,605 1,764,284,043
561,180 801,463 2,286,247 3,241,918

561,977,136 436,965,627 2,289,494,852 1,767,525,961
556,795,543 435,015,613 2,268,385,042 1,759,638,154
5,181,593 1,950,014 21,109,810 7,887,807
561,977,136 436,965,627 2,289,494,852 1,767,525,961
561,977,136 436,965,627 2,289,494,852 1,767,525,961
561,977,136 436,965,627 2,289,494,852 1,767,525,961
25,616,523 19,864,250 104,361,715 80,350,891
536,360,613 417,101,377 2,185,133,137 1,687,175,070
561,977,136 436,965,627 2,289,494,852 1,767,525,961

(*) A “large exposure” is defined under the NBC’s Prakas as the overall gross exposure of the
aggregate balance of loans and advances with one single beneficiary, which exceeds 10% of the
Bank’s net worth. The exposure is the higher of the outstanding loans or commitments and the
authorised loans or commitments.

(**) A “restructured loan” is a loan that original contractual terms have been modified to provide for
concessions for the borrowers for reasons related to real temporary financial difficulties.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

32. Financial risk management (continued)

B. Credit risk (continued)

(iv). Collateral
Whilst the Bank’s maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of the assets or, in the
case of off-balance sheet instruments, the amount guaranteed, committed, accepted or endorsed,
the likely exposure may be lower due to offsetting collateral, credit guarantees and other actions
taken to mitigate the Bank’s exposure.
The description of collateral for each class of financial asset is set out below.

Cash equivalents with other banks, balances with NBC, placements with other banks, debt
investments and other assets

Collateral is generally not sought for these assets.
Loans and advances to customers, contingent liabilities and commitments
Certain Loans and advances to customers, contingent liabilites and commitments are typically

collateralised to a substantial extent. In particular, residential mortgage exposures are generally
fully secured by residential properties.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

32. Financial risk management (continued)

B. Credit risk (continued)

(v). Credit quality of gross Loans and advances to customers

Pursuant to the NBC guideline Prakas B7-017-344, it has defined each credit grading according to
its credit quality as follows:

Normal

Outstanding facility is repaid on timely manner and is not in doubt for the future repayment. Repayment
is steadily made according with the contractual terms and the facility does not exhibit any potential
weakness in repayment capability, business, cash flow and financial position of the counterparty.

Special mention

A facility in this class is currently protected and may not be past due but it exhibits potential
weaknesses that may adversely affect repayment of the counterparty at the future date, if not
corrected in a timely manner, and close attention by the Institution.

Weaknesses include but are not limited to a declining trend in the business operations of the
counterparty or in its financial position, and adverse economic and market conditions that all might
affect its profitability and its future repayment capacity, or deteriorating conditions on the collateral.
This class has clearly its own rational and should not be used as a compromise between Normal
and Substandard.

Substandard

A facility ranked in this class exhibits noticeable weakness and is not adequately protected by the
current business or financial position and repayment capacity of the counterparty. In essence, the
primary source of repayment is not sufficient to service the debt, not taking into account the income
from secondary sources such as the realization of the collateral.

Factors leading to a substandard classification include:

- Inability of the counterparty to meet the contractual repayments' terms,

- Unfavourable economic and market conditions that would adversely affect the business and
profitability of the counterparty in the future,

- Weakened financial condition and/or inability of the counterparty to generate enough cash flow
to service the payments,

- Difficulties experienced by the counterparty in repaying other facilities granted by the Institution
or by other institutions when the information is available, and

- Breach of financial covenants by the counterparty.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

32. Financial risk management (continued)

B. Credit risk (continued)

(v). Credit quality of gross Loans and advances to customers (continued)
Doubtful

A facility classified in this category exhibits more severe weaknesses than one classified
Substandard such that its full collection on the basis of existing facts, conditions or collateral value
is highly questionable or improbable. The prospect of loss is high, even if the exact amount remains
undetermined for now.

Loss

A facility is classified Loss when it is not collectable, and little or nothing can be done to recover the
outstanding amount from the counterparty.

Restructured loans

National Bank of Cambodia has issued a circular on loan restructuring during Covid-19 outbreak
which requires the institutions to work constructively with affected borrowers and allows for loan
restructuring for priority sectors. As a result, the Bank has provided a restructuring loan amounting
to US$25,616,523 (2020: US$19,864,250) and the restructured loans will be downgraded the
staging if the borrower’s credit risk has increase significantly. Refer to Note 34(F) for details policy.
Recognition of ECL

The Bank apply a three-Stage approach based on the change in credit quality since initial recognition:

3-Stage approach Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Performing Underperforming Nonperforming
Recognition of 12 months expected credit Lifetime expected Lifetime expected
expected credit losses losses credit losses credit losses
Criterion No significant increase in Credit risk increased Credit impaired assets
credit risk significantly
Basic of calculation of On gross carrying amounts On gross carrying On net carrying
interest income amounts amounts
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

32. Financial risk management (continued)

B. Credit risk (continued)

(v). Credit quality of gross Loans and advances to customers (continued)
Recognition of ECL (continued)

The Bank will measure ECL by using the general approach. The general approach consists of
segregating the customers into three different Stages according to the staging criteria by assessing
the credit risk. 12-month ECL will be computed for Stage 1, while lifetime ECL will be computed for
Stage 2 and Stage 3. At each reporting date, the Bank will assess credit risk of each account as
compared to the risk level at origination date.

Long-term facilities (more than one year)

Stages | Credit Risk Status Grades DPD Default Indicator
1 No significant increase in credit risk | Normal 0<DPD<30 Performing
2 Credit risk increased significantly | Special Mention 30 <DPD<90 | Under-performing
Substandard 90 < DPD <180
3 Credit impaired assets Doubtful 180 < DPD <360 | Non-performing
Loss DPD = 360
Short-term facilities (one year or less)
Stages | Credit Risk Status Grades DPD Default Indicator
1 No significant increase in credit risk | Normal 0<DPD<14 Performing
2 Credit risk increased significantly | Special Mention 15<DPD=<30 Under-performing
Substandard 31<DPD<60
3 Credit impaired assets Doubtful 61<DPD <90 Non-performing
Loss DPD =91
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

32. Financial risk management (continued)

B. Credit risk (continued)

(v). Credit quality of gross Loans and advances to customers (continued)
Recognition of ECL (continued)

The Bank will use the day past due (“DPD”) information and NBC’s classification for staging criteria.
Also, the Bank will incorporate credit scoring or more forward looking elements in the future when
information is more readily available. Upon the implementation of credit scoring system, it the risk
level drops by two or more notches as compared to the risk level at origination, the accounts have
to be classified under Stage 2.

As for financial assets that are short term in nature, simplified approach will be adopted where no
staging criteria is required. In this case, it will be either performing (Stage1) or non-performing.

The table below summarises the credit quality of the Bank’s gross financing according to the above

classifications.
31 December 2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Us$ Us$ US$ Us$
Loans and advances to customers
at amortised cost
Normal 542 595,888 1,781,049 - 544376,937
Special mention - 10,683,804 - 10,683,804
Substandard - 1,752,964 2,173,213 3,926,177
Doubtful - 465,125 863,796 1,328,921
Loss - - 1,661,297 1,661,297
542,595,888 14,682,942 4698306 561,977,136
Impaiment loss allowance (1,554,450) (290,279) (936,976) (2,781,705)
Carrying amounts 541,041,438 14,392,663 3,761,330  559,195431

Canying amounts (KHR'000-Note 5)  2,204,202,818 58,635,709 15,323,658 2,278,162,186
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

32. Financial risk management (continued)

B.

(v).

Credit risk (continued)

Credit quality of gross loans and advances to customers (continued)
Recognition of ECL (continued)

31 December 2020

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Us$ US$ US$ US$
Loans and advances to
customers at amortised cost

Normal 431,579,632 3,267,056 - 434,846,688
Special mention - 627,988 - 627,988
Substandard - - 189,443 189,443
Doubitful - - 125,888 125,888
Loss - - 1,175,620 1,175,620
431,579,632 3,895,044 1,490,951 436,965,627
Impaiment loss allowance (1,261,676) (90,052) (300,305) (1,652,033)
Carying amounts 430,317,956 3,804,992 1,190,646 435,313,594

Canying amounts (KHRO00Note 5) 1.740,636,132 15391193 4,816,163 1,760,843488

Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Bank incorporates forward-ooking information into both the assessment of whether the credit risk
of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and the measurement of ECL.

External information considered includes economic data and forecasts published by govemmental
bodies and monetary authorities in the countries where the Bank operates, supranational
organisations such as the World Bank, and selected private-sector and academic forecasters.

For commercial loan portfolio, an internal rating model developed by Shinhan Bank Korea has been
used. Shinhan Bank Korea used the actual 1-year PD for the calculation of provisional loss based
on the ECL. Forward looking macroeconomic factors have been incorporated within this model.
The probability of default corresponding to maturity of each rating is estimated for 10 years under
the assumption of Weibull distribution. In order to apply Shinhan Bank’s CIFRS Corporate PD with
adjustment, 9 years of data for NPL ratio are acquired for both Cambodia and South Korea and
multiplied with Shinhan Bank Korea lifetime PD.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

32. Financial risk management (continued)

B. Credit risk (continued)

(v). Credit quality of gross Loans and advances to customers (continued)
Incorporation of forward-looking information (continued)

The Bank applies Loan to Value (“LTV”) cap of 70% and DSR floor of 1.67, which are similar to
Korean rule.

The ECL was estimated based on a range of forecast economic conditions as at reporting date.
The Novel Coronavirus (Covid-19) outbreak has spread across globally including Cambodia and
beyond, causing disruption to business and economic activity. The impact on Gross Domestic
Product (“GDP”) and other key indicators will be considered when determining the severity and
likelihood of downside economic scenarios that are used to estimate ECL.

(vi. Amounts arising from ECL
Loss allowance

The following tables show reconciliation from the opening to the closing balance of the loss
allowance by class of financial instrument.

31 December 2021

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Us$ Us$ Us$ USs$
Loans and advances to customers
at amortised cost
At1 January 1,261,676 90,052 300,305 1,652,033
- Transfer to Stage 1 67,445 (67,445) - -
- Transfer to Stage 2 (93,592) 105,361 (11,769) -
- Transfer to Stage 3 (4,607) (A47) 5,554 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance (397,695) 102,079 585,107 289,491
New financial assets originated 528,148 58,085 25,830 612,063
Financial assets that been
derecognised 193,075 3,0%4 31,949 228,118
At 31 December 1,554,450 290,279 936,976 2,781,705

At 31 December (KHR'000 — Note 5) 6,332,829 1,182,597 3,817,240 11,332,666
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

32. Financial risk management (continued)

B. Credit risk (continued)

(vi. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance (continued)

Loans and advances to customers at

amortised cost

At 1 January

- Transfer to Stage 2

- Transfer to Stage 3

Net remeasurement of loss allowance
New financial assets originated

Financial assets that been derecognised

At 31 December

At 31 December (KHR'000 — Note 5)

Audited Financial Report

31 December 2020

Global Network

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Us$ Us$ Us$ Us$
311,617 48,753 38,705 399,075
(11,242) 11,242 - -
(230) (37,340) 37,570 -
479,143 75,883 222,629 777,655
536,527 2926 1,408 540,861
(54,139) (11,412) 7) (65,558)
1,261,676 90,052 300,305 1,652,033
5,103,479 364,260 1,214,734 6,682,473

Impairment losses allowance recognised in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are summarised as follows:

Allowance for impairment losses:

Cash and cash equivalents
(Note 6)

Placements with other banks
(Note 7)

Loans and advances to customers
(Note 9)

Debt investments (Note 11)

Off balance sheet items (Note 30A)

2021 2020 2021 2020

US$ US$ KHR'000 KHR'000

(Note 5) (Note 5)
5409 (6,780) 22,004 (27,642)
(21,305) (133,957) (86,669) (546,143)
(1,129,672) (1,252,958)  (4,595,506)  (5,108,310)
20,104 483,632 81,783 1,971,768
22,251 (292,466) 90,517  (1,192,384)
(1,103,213) (1,202,529)  (4,487,871)  (4,902,711)
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

32. Financial risk management (continued)

C. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — e.g. interest rates, foreign exchange rates
and equity prices — will affect the Bank’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.
The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the retum.

(i). Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a result of changes in the levels of
interest rate and shifts in the composition of the assets and liabilities. Interest rate risk is managed
through close monitoring of retums on investment, market pricing and cost of funds. The potential
reduction in net interestincome from an unfavourable interest rate movement is regularly monitored
against the risk tolerance limits set.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

32. Financial risk management (continued)

C. Market risk (continued)

(i). Interest rate risk (continued)

As of 31 December 2021, the Bank did not have financial instruments carried at fair value. The
Bank does not use derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps to hold its risk
exposures. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis was prepared.

Interest rate benchmark reform

A fundamental reform of major interest rate benchmarks is being undertaken globally, including the
replacement of some interbank offered rates (IBORs) with alternative nearly risk-free rates (referred
to as ‘IBOR reform’). The Bank has several exposure to IBORs on its financial assets instruments
that will be reformed as part of this market-wide initiative. However, although sterling LIBOR and
US Dollar LIBOR were planned to be discontinued by the end of 2021, consultations and possible
regulatory changes are in progress. This may mean that some LIBORs continue to be published
beyond that date. The Bank is in the process of amending or preparing to amend contractual terms
in response to IBOR reform, and there is still uncertainty over the timing and the methods of
transition in some jurisdictions that the Bank operates in.

The main risks to which the Bank is exposed as a result of IBOR reform are operational. For example,
the renegotiation of loan and advance contracts through bilateral negotiation with the customers,
updating of contractual terms, updating of systems that use IBOR curves and revision of operational
controls related to the reform. Financial risk is predominantly limited to interest rate risk.

For existing contracts that are indexed to a LIBOR and mature after the expected cessation of the
LIBOR rate, the Bank’s treasury department has not yet renegotiated with the counter parties to
amend the contractual terms of affected contracts and the determination of alternative rates.

The altemative reference rate for US Dollar (“‘US$”) LIBOR is the Secured Ovemight Financing

Rate (SOFR). Changes to the contractual terms of financial assets of the Bank indexed to US Dollar
LIBOR to incorporate new benchmark rates are not yet completed as at 31 December 2021.

31 December 2021

US$ KHR'000
(Note 5)

Financial liabilities that reference US$ LIBOR
Shinhan Bank Co., Ltd. 200,000,000 814,800,000
Shinhan Bank, Hongkong Branch 28,000,000 114,072,000
Total borrowings 228,000,000 928,872,000
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

32. Financial risk management (continued)

C. Market risk (continued)

(ii). Foreign currency exchange risk

Foreign currency exchange risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due
to changes in foreign exchange rates.

Concentration of currency risk

The amounts of financial assets and liabilities, by currency denomination, are as follows:

Denomination
USS$ equivalents

31 December 2021 KHR US$ Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11,304,094 19,844,479 31,148,573
Placements with other banks - 47,564,234 47,564,234
Loans and advances to customers 64,430,061 497 547,075 561,977,136
Other assets - 182,520 182,520
Debt investments 25,470,691 28,451 25,499,142

101,204,846 565,166,759 666,371,605
Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 2,852,877 80,439,064 83,291,941
Deposits from other banks 23,731,730 68,113,474 91,845,204
Borrowings 13,762,251 377,938,489 391,700,740
Lease liabilities - 6,206,488 6,206,488
Other liabilities 511 1,114,515 1,115,026

40,347,369 533,812,030 574,159,399

Net asset position 60,857,477 31,354,729 92,212,206
KHR’000 equivalents (Note 5) 247,933,362 127,739,166 375,672,528
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Market risk (continued)
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The amounts of financial assets and liabilities, by currency denomination, are as follows: (continued)

31 December 2020

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Placements with other banks
Loans and advances to customers
Other assets

Debt investments

Financial liabilities

Deposits from customers
Deposits from other banks
Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Other liabilities

Net asset position

KHR’000 equivalents (Note 5)

Denomination
USS$ equivalents

KHR US$ Total
2,548,946 37,265,128 39,814,074
9,888,752 51,460,000 61,348,752
45,900,738 391,064,889 436,965,627
- 471,181 471,181
25,681,954 - 25,681,954
84,020,390 480,261,198 564,281,588
814,332 55,350,946 56,165,278
9822473 88,030,064 97,852,537
36,183,239 283,338,384 319,521,623
- 6,996,658 6,996,658
196 333,619 333,815
46,820,240 434,049,671 480,869,911
37,200,150 46,211,527 83,411,677
150,474,607 186,925,627 337,400,233
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C. Market risk (continued)

(ii). Foreign currency exchange risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis
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Considering that other risk variables remain constant, the foreign currency revaluation sensitivity
for the Bank as at reporting date is summarised as follows for the exposures in currencies that
accounts for more than 5 percent of the net open positions are shown in its specific currency in the

table below.
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
-1% +1% -1% +1%
Depreciation Appreciation Depreciation Appreciation
US$ US$ US$ Us$
KHR 608,575 (608,575) 372,002 (372,002)
KHR'000 — Note 5 2,479,334 (2,479,334) 1,504,746 (1,504,746)

D. Liquidity risk

‘Liquidity risk’ is the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk
arises from mismatches in the timing and amounts of cash flows, which is inherent to the Bank’s

operations and investments.

Management of liquidity risk

The Bank manages its liquidity through its Asset Liability Management Committee which is
responsible for establishing the liquidity policy as well as monitoring liquidity on an ongoing basis.
A Minimum Liquid Asset requirement has been established to ensure that the ratio of liquid assets
to qualifying liabilities is subject to a minimum threshold at all times.

The table below summarises the Bank’s assets and liabilites based on remaining contractual
maturities. The expected cash flows of these assets and liabilities could vary significantly from what
is shown in the table. For example, deposits from customers are not all expected to be withdrawn

immediately.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

32. Financial risk management (continued)

E. Operational risk

The operational risk is the risk of losses arising from inadequate or failed intemal processes, people
or systems or from external factors. This risk is managed through established operational risk
management processes, proper monitoring and reporting of the business activities by control and
oversight provided by the senior Management. This includes legal, compliance, accounting and
fraud risk.

The operational risk management entails the establishment of clear organizational structures, roles
and control policies. Various intermnal control policies and measures have been implemented. These
include the establishment of signing authorities, defining system parameters controls, streaming
procedures and documentation ensuring compliance with regulatory and legal requirements.
These are reviewed continually to address the operational risks of its banking business.

F. Capital management

(). Regulatory capital
The Bank’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the “equity” on the
face of the statement of financial position, are:
¢ To comply with the capital requirements set by the NBC;

e Tosafeguard the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concem so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

¢ To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of the business.

The Bank’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain market confidence and to
sustain further development of the business. The impact of the level of capital on shareholders’
return is also recognised and the Bank recognised the need to maintain a balance between the
higher retums that might be possible with greater gearing and advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position.

(ii). Capital allocation
The allocation of capital between specific operations and activities is, to a large extent, driven by

optimisation of the return achieved on the capital allocated. The amount of capital allocated to each
operation or activity is based primarily upon the regulatory capital.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

33. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Financial instruments comprise financial assets, financial liabilities and off-balance sheet instruments.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence,
the most advantageous market to which the Bank has access at that date. The information presented
herein represents the estimates of fair values as at the financial position date.

Quoted and observable market prices, where available, are used as the measure of fair values of the
financial instruments. Where such quoted and observable market prices are not available, fair values
are estimated based on a range of methodologies and assumptions regarding risk characteristics of
various financial instruments, discount rates, estimates of future cash flows and other factors.

Fair value information for non-financial assets and liabilities are excluded as they do not fall within
the scope of CIFRS 7: Financial Instruments Disclosures which requires the fair value information
to be disclosed. These include investment in subsidiaries and property and equipment.

The fair value of the Bank's financial instruments such as cash and short-term funds, deposits and
placements with banks and other financial institutions, deposits from customers and banks, other
assets, other liabilities and short-term borrowings are not materially sensitive to shifts in market
profit rate because of the limited term to maturity of these instruments. As such, the carrying value
of these financial assets and liabilities at financial position date approximate their fair values.

The fair values are based on the following methodologies and assumptions:

Deposits and placements with National Bank of Cambodia and other banks

The carrying amounts of deposits and placements with National Bank of Cambodia and other
banks approximate their fair values, since these accounts consist mostly of current, savings and
short-term deposits.

Loan and advances to customers

For fixed rate loans with remaining period to maturity of less than or more than one year, the
carrying amounts are generally reasonable estimates of their fair values.

Deposits from customers and from other banks

The fair values of deposits payable on demand (current and savings accounts), or deposits with
remaining maturity of less than one year are estimated to approximate their carrying amounts. The
fair values of deposits with remaining maturity of more than one year are estimated based on
discounted cash flows using prevailing market rates for similar deposits from banks and customers.

Borrowings

Borrowings are not quoted in active market and their fair value approximates their carrying amount.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

33. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Other financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts of other financial assets and liabilities are assumed to approximate their fair
values as these items are not materially sensitive to the shift in market interest rates.

Debt investments

The estimated fair values are generally based on quoted and observable market prices. Where
there is no ready market in certain securities, fair values have been estimated by reference to
market indicative yields or net tangible asset backing of the investee.

Financing, advances and others

The fair value is estimated by discounting the estimated future cash flows using the prevailing
market rates of financing with similar credit risks and maturities.

Fair value hierarchy

CIFRS 7 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation
techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from
independent sources and unobservable inputs reflect the Bank’s market assumptions. The fair value
hierarchy is as follows:

e Level 1 —Quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for the identical assets or liabilities. This
level includes listed equity securities and debt instruments.

e Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

e Level 3 — Inputs for asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs). This level includes equity instruments and debt instruments with
significant unobservable components.

The Bank’s financial assets and liability are not measured at fair value. As verifiable market prices
are not available, market prices are not available for a significant proportion of the Bank’s financial
assets and liabilities, the fair values, therefore, have been based on management assumptions
according to the profile of the asset and liability base. In the opinion of the management, the carrying
amounts of the financial assets and liabilities included in the balance sheet are a reasonable
estimation of their fair values.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

34. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated (Note 35).

A. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.

B. Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of at the spot
exchange rates at the date of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary
items is the difference between the amortised cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the
year, adjusted for effective interest, impairment and payments during the year, and the amortised
cost in the foreign currency translated at the spot exchange rate at the end of the year.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated into the functional currency at the spot exchange rate at the date on which the fair value
is determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the spot exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency differences arising on translation are generally recognised in profit or loss.

C. Financial assets and financial liabilities

(). Recognition and initial measurement
The Bank initially recognises loans and advances, borrowings and subordinated liabilities on the
date on which they are originated. All other financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the
date on which the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

(ii). Classification
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost, FVOCI or FVTPL.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

C. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(ii). Classification
Financial assets (continued)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL.:

e the assetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
SPPI.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
SPPI.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Bank may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis.

Al other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.

In addition, on initial recognition, the Bank may imrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Business model assessment

The Bank makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at
a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

e the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
In particular, whether management’s strategy focuses on eaming contractual interest revenue,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realising cash flows through the sale
of the assets;
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

C. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(ii). Classification (continued)
Business model assessment (continued)
¢ how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Bank’s management;

o the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and its strategy for how those risks are managed;

e how managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether compensation is based on the
fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected); and

e the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its
expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not
considered in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Bank’s stated objective
for managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realised.

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash
flows nor held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets.

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest-SPPI

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Bank considers the contractual
terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual
term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet
this condition.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

C. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(ii). Classification (continued)
Business model assessment (continued)

In making the assessment, the Bank considers:

e contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;
e |everage features;

e prepayment and extension terms;

e terms that limit the Bank’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse loans);
and

o features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rates).
Non-recourse loans

In some cases, loans made by the Bank that are secured by collateral of the borrower limit the
Bank’s claim to cash flows of the underlying collateral (non-recourse loans). The Bank applies
judgment in assessing whether the non-recourse loans meet the SPPI criterion. The Bank typically
considers the following information when making this judgement:

e whether the contractual arrangement specifically defines the amounts and dates of the cash
payments of the loan;

e the fair value of the collateral relative to the amount of the secured financial asset;

e the ability and willingness of the borrower to make contractual payments, notwithstanding a
decline in the value of collateral;

e whether the borrower is an individual or a substantive operating entity or is a special-purpose
entity;

e the Bank’s risk of loss on the asset relative to a full-recourse loan;

e the extent to which the collateral represents all or a substantial portion of the borrower’s assets;
and

e whether the Bank will benefit from any upside from the underlying assets.
Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after
the Bank changes its business model for managing financial assets.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

C. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(iij). Derecognition
Financial assets

The Bank derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset
(or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii)
any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCl is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

The Bank derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire.

(iv). Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, then the Bank evaluates whether the cash flows of the
modified asset are substantially different.

If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original
financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised
(see (iii)) and a new financial asset is recognised at fair value plus any eligible transaction costs.
Any fees received as part of the modification are accounted for as follows:

o fees that are considered in determining the fair value of the new asset and fees that represent
reimbursement of eligible transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the asset;
and

o other fees are included in profit and loss as part of the gain or loss on derecognition.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

C. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(iv). Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

If cash flows are modified when the borrower is in financial difficulties, then the objective of the
maodification is usually to maximise recovery of the original contractual terms rather than to originate
a new asset with substantially different terms. If the Bank plans to modify a financial asset in a way
that would result in forgiveness of cash flows, then it first considers whether a portion of the asset
should be written off before the modification takes place (see below for write-off policy). This
approach impacts the result of the quantitative evaluation and means that the derecognition criteria
are not usually met in such cases.

If the modification of a financial asset measured at amortised cost or FVOCI does not result in
derecognition of the financial asset, then the Bank first recalculates the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset using the original effective interest rate of the asset and recognises the resulting
adjustment as a modification gain or loss in profit and loss. For floating-rate financial assets, the
original effective interest rate used to calculate the modification gain or loss is adjusted to reflect
current market terms at the time of the modification. Any costs or fees incurred and fees received
as part of the modification adjust the gross carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are
amortised over the remaining term of the modified financial asset.

If such a modification is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or
loss is presented together with impairment losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest income
calculated using the effective interest rate method.

Financial liabilities

The Bank derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and consideration paid is recognised in profit and loss. Consideration
paid includes non-financial assets transferred, if any, and the assumption of liabilities, including the
new modified financial liability.

If the modification of a financial liability is not accounted for as derecognition, then the amortised
cost of the liability is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective
interest rate and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit and loss. For floating-rate financial
liabilities, the original effective interest rate used to calculate the modification gain or loss is adjusted
to reflect current market terms at the time of the modification. Any costs and fees incurred are
recognised as an adjustment to the carrying amount of the liability and amortised over the remaining
term of the modified financial liability by re-computing the effective interest rate on the instrument.

Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC.| 109



Message From the CEO  About Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC.  Business Analysis & Planning Audited Financial Report Global Network

Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

C. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(v). Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Bank has a legal right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(vi). Fair value measurement

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Bank has access at that date. The fair value
of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When one is available, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in
an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as ‘active’ if transactions for the asset or
liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing
basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Bank uses valuation techniques that
maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The
chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into
account in pricing a transaction.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the
transaction price — i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Bank determines
that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is
evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based
on a valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in relation
to the measurement, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to
defer the difference between the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price.
Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit and loss on an appropriate basis over the life
of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market
data or the transaction is closed out.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Bank
measures assets and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price.
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34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

C. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(vi). Fair value measurement (continued)

Portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities that are exposed to market risk and credit risk that
are managed by the Bank on the basis of the net exposure to either market or credit risk are measured
on the basis of a price that would be received to sell a net long position (or paid to transfer a net short
position) for the particular risk exposure. Portfolio-level adjustments —e.g. bid-ask adjustment or credit
risk adjustments that reflect the measurement on the basis of the net exposure — are allocated to the
individual assets and liabilities on the basis of the relative risk adjustment of each of the individual
instruments in the portfolio.

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the
amount payable on demand, discounted from the first date on which the amount could be required
to be paid.

The Bank recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

(vii). Impairment

The Bank recognises loss allowances for ECL on the following financial instruments that are not
measured at FVTPL:

e financial assets that are debt instruments;
¢ financial guarantee contracts issued; and

¢ loan commitments issued.
No impairment loss is recognised on equity investments.

The Bank measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following,
for which they are measured as 12-month ECL:

e debtinvestment securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

¢ otherfinancial instruments (other than lease receivables) on which credit risk has not increased
significantly since their initial recognition.
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34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

C. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(vii). Impairment (continued)

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. Financial instruments for which a 12-
month ECL is recognised are referred to as ‘Stage 1 financial instruments’.

Life-time ECL are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the
financial instrument. Financial instruments for which a lifetime ECL is recognised but which are not
credit-impaired are referred to as ‘Stage 2 financial instruments’.

At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition. When credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Bank considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Bank’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and includes forward-looking information.

If credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition or if the credit quality of the
financial instruments improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Bank is exposed to credit risk.

Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly

The Bank assesses whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition at each
reporting date. Determining whether an increase in credit risk is significant depends on the
characteristics of the financial instrument and the borrower, and the geographical region.

The Bank considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs no later than when an asset is
more than 30 days past due for long term facilities or more than or equal to 15 days past due for
short term facilities. Days past due are determined by counting the number of days since the earliest
elapsed due date in respect of which full payment has not been received. Due dates are determined
without considering any grace period that might be available to the borrower.

If there is evidence that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk relative to initial
recognition, then the loss allowance on an instrument retumns to being measured as 12-month ECL.
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34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

C. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(vii). Impairment (continued)
Definition of default

The Bank considers a financial asset to be in default when:

¢ the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Bank in full, without recourse by the
Bank to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

¢ the borrower is more than or equal to 90 days past due for long-term facilities or more than or
equal to 30 days past due for short-term facilities on any material obligation to the Bank; or

¢ itis becoming probable that the borrower will restructure the asset as a result of bankruptcy due
to the borrower’s inability to pay its credit obligations.

Measurement of ECL

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

¢ financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all
cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive);

¢ financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the
gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows;

¢ undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual
cash flows that are due to the Bank if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that
the Bank expects to receive; and

e financial guarantee contracts: the expected payments to reimburse the holder less any
amounts that the Bank expects to recover.

Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment
The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables:

e Probability of default (‘PD”);
e Loss given default (‘LGD”); and
e Exposure at default (“EAD”).
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34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

C. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(vii). Impairment (continued)
Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment (continued)

ECL for exposures in Stage 1 is calculated by multiplying the 12-month PD by LGD and EAD.
Lifetime ECL is calculated by multiplying the lifetime PD by LGD and EAD.

The statistical model has been employed to analyse data collected and generate estimate of
remaining lifetime PD of exposure and how these are expected to change as result of passage of
time.

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Bank estimates LGD parameters
based on the history of recovery rates of claims against defaulted counterparties. The LGD models
consider the structure, collateral, seniority of the claim, counterparty industry and recovery costs of
any collateral that is integral to the financial asset. For loans secured by retail property, LTV ratios
are a key parameter in determining LGD. LGD estimates are recalibrated for different economic
scenarios and, for real estate lending, to reflect possible changes in property prices. They are
calculated on a discounted cash flow basis using the effective interest rate as the discounting factor.

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Bank derives the EAD from
the current exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the current amount allowed
under the contract and arising from amortisation. The EAD of a financial asset is its gross carrying
amount at the time of default. For lending commitments, the EADs are potential future amounts
that may be drawn under the contract, which are estimated based on historical observations and
forward-looking forecasts. For some financial assets, EAD is determined by modelling the range of
possible exposure outcomes at various points in time using scenario and statistical techniques.

As described above, and subject to using a maximum of a 12-month PD for Stage 1 financial
assets, the Bank measures ECL considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual
period (including any borrower’'s extension options) over which it is exposed to credit risk, even ff,
for credit risk management purposes, the Bank considers a longer period. The maximum
contractual period extends to the date at which the Bank has the right to require repayment of an
advance or terminate a loan commitment or guarantee.
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34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

C. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(vii). Impairment (continued)
Restructured financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is replaced
with a new one due to financial difficulties of the borrower, then an assessment is made of whether
the financial asset should be derecognised and ECL are measured as follows.

o |[f the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the
expected cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating the
cash shortfalls from the existing asset.

o [fthe expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected
fair value of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at
the time of its derecognition. This amount is included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the
existing financial asset that are discounted from the expected date of derecognition to the
reporting date using the original effective interest rate of the existing financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and
debt financial assets carried at FVOCI are credit-impaired (referred to as ‘Stage 3 financial assets’).
A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

¢ significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
e abreach of contract such as a default or past due event;

e the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Bank on terms that the Bank would not consider
otherwise;

¢ itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

o the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.
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34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

C. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(vii). Impairment (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower's condition is usually
considered to be credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual
cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. In addition, a
loan that is overdue for 90 days for long term facilities or 30 days for short term facilities is
considered credit-impaired even when the regulatory definition of default is different.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position for financial assets
measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Provision for financial guarantee contracts are presented in a separate liability in the statement of
financial position.

Where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the Bank cannot
identify the ECL on the loan commitment component separately from those on the drawn component:
the Bank presents a combined loss allowance for both components. The combined amount is
presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn component. Any excess of the
loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn component is presented as a provision.

Write-off

Loans and advances are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the
case when the Bank determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. This assessment
is carried out at the individual asset level.

Recoveries of amounts previously written off are included in ‘other income’ in the statement of profit
and loss and OCI.

Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply
with the Bank’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

C. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(viii). Interest rate benchmark reform

If the basis of determining the contractual cash flows of a financial asset or financial liability
measured at amortised cost changes as a result of interest rate benchmark reform, then the Bank
updates the effective interest rate of the financial asset orfinancial liability to reflect the change that
is required by the reform. A change in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows is
required by interest rate benchmark reform if the following conditions are met:

¢ the change is necessary as a direct consequence of the reform; and

¢ the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis —i.e. the basis immediately before the change.

If changes are made to a financial asset or financial liability in addition to changes to the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows required by interest rate benchmark reform, then the Bank
first updates the effective interest rate of the financial asset or financial liability to reflect the change
that is required by interest rate benchmark reform. After that, the Bank applies the policies on
accounting for modifications set out above to the additional charges.

D. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances, demand deposits and short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition
that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Bank in
the management of its short-term commitments.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial position.

E. Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of the
ordinary share are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects. Other shares are
classified as equity and/or liability according to the economic substance of the particular instrument.
Distributions to holders of a financial instrument classified as an equity instrument are charged
directly to equity.

Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC.| 117/



Message From the CEO  About Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC.  Business Analysis & Planning Audited Financial Report Global Network

Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

F. Reserves and regulatory reserves

The reserves are set up for any overall financial risk. The Board of Directors exercises its discretion
for the use and maintenance of the general reserves. The transfer from retained eamings to
reserves is subject to the approval by shareholders.

Regulatory reserves are set up for the variance of provision between loan impairment in
accordance with CIFRS and regulatory provision in accordance with National Bank of Cambodia’s
Prakas No. B7-017-344 dated 1 December 2017 and Circular No. B7-018-001 Sor Ror Chor Nor
dated 16 February 2018 on credit risk classification and provision on impairment for banks and
financial institutions. In accordance with Article 73, the entity is shall compare the provision
calculated in accordance with Article 49 to 71 and the provision calculated in accordance with Article
72, and the record:

() In case that the regulatory provision calculated in accordance with Article 72 is lower than
provision calculated in accordance with Article 49 to 71, the entity records the provision
calculated in accordance with CIFRS; and

(i)  In case that the regulatory provision calculated in accordance with Article 72 is higher than
provision calculated in accordance with Article 49 to 71, the entity records the provision
calculated in accordance with CIFRS and transfer the difference from retained eamings or
accumulated loss account into regulatory reserve in shareholders’ equity of the statement of
the financial position.

The regulatory reserves are not an item to be included in the calculated of the Institution net worth.

On 28 December 2021, the NBC issued a new Circular, No. B7-021-2314 CL on Classification and
Provisioning Requirement on Restructure Loans, which aims at phasing out the forbearance period
for the existing restructured loans and phasing the classification and provisioning arrangements
complying with the current regulation, Prakas No.B7-017-344 dated 01 December 2017 on Credit
Risk Grading and Impairment Provisioning. In this regard, all restructured loans by 31 December
2021 shall be classified and provisioned based on the requirements under this circular. For loans
that were still in the assessment period, they shall be kept at the same classification as before the
restructured terms of contract.

Following the NBC’s workshop on “the Circular on Classification and Provisioning Requirement for
Restructured Loans” held on 18 January 2022, the NBC issued a communication on 4 February
2022 allowing banking and financial institutions ("BFIs") to defer the implementation of the new
Circular until January 2022 onward though early adoption is encouraged. The Bank chose to defer
the implementation of the new Circular in preparing these financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021.
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34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

G. Deposits and placements with banks

Deposits and placements with banks are stated at amortised cost less impairment for any uncollectable
amounts.

H. Statutory deposits

Statutory deposits included in balances with the NBC are maintained in compliance with the
Cambodian Law on Banking and Financial Institutions and are determined by the defined
percentage of the minimum share capital and the customers’ deposits as required by NBC.

l. Loans and advances to customers

‘Loans and advances to customers’ captions in the statement of financial position include loans and
advances to customers measured at amortised cost; they are initially measured at fair value plus
incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently at their amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

J. Other assets

Other assets are carried at amortised cost less impairment if any.

K. Property and equipment

(). Recognition and measurement

ltems of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and any other
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use, and the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. The
cost of self-constructed assets also includes the cost of materials and direct labour. For qualifying
assets, borrowing costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing
costs. Cost also may include transfers from equity of any gain or loss on qualifying cash flow
hedges of foreign currency purchases of property and equipment.
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34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

K. Property and equipment (continued)

(). Recognition and measurement

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part
of that equipment.

When significant parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property and equipment.

(ii). Subsequent costs

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property and equipment and is recognised net
within “other income” and “other expenses” respectively in profit or loss.

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the
component will flow to the Bank, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced component is derecognised to profit or loss. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of
property and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(iiij). Depreciation

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the
component will flow to the Bank, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced component is derecognised to profit or loss. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of
property and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components of
individual assets are assessed, and if a component has a useful life that is different from the
remainder of that asset, then that component is depreciated separately.

Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is
reasonably certain that the Bank will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

Depreciation is recognised from the date that the property, plant and equipment are installed and

are ready for use, or in respect of internally constructed assets, from the date that the asset is
completed and ready for use.
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34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

K. Property and equipment (continued)

(iii). Depreciation (continued)

Depreciation of property and equipment is charged to the profit or loss using the following methods

and rates:

Method Rate
Leasehold improvements Straight-line 5%
Computer and office equipment Declining 25%
Furniture and fittings Declining 25% - 50%
Motor vehicles Declining 25%

Construction in progress, if any, is not depreciated until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and put into operational use.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at end of the reporting
period and adjusted if appropriate.

L. Intangible assets
Intangible assets, which comprise acquired computer software licenses and related costs, are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss. Acquired computer software
licenses are capitalised on the basis of the cost incurred to acquire the specific software and bring
it to use.
Intangible assets are amortised at the rate of 50% using the declining balance method.

Costs associated with the development or maintenance of computer software are recognised as
expenses when incurred.

M. Leases
At inception of a contract, the Bank assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract

is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for
period of time in exchange for consideration.
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M. Leases (continued)

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Bank
assesses whether:

¢ the contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be specified explicitly or implicitly,
and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically
distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right throughout the period of use,
then the asset is not identified;

¢ the Bank has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

¢ the Bank has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Bank has this right when it has the
decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset
is used. In cases where all the decisions about how and for what purpose the asset is used are
predetermined, the Bank has the right to direct the use of the asset if either:

« the Bank has the right to operate the asset; or

« the Bank designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose It will
be used.

Leases in which the Bank is a lessee

At commencement or on maodification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Bank
allocates consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand-
alone price. However, for leases of office premises the Bank has elected not to separate non-ease
components and accounts for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

The Bank recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straightine method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end
of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same
basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.
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34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

M. Leases (continued)
Leases in which the Bank is a lessee (continued)
The estimated useful lives for the current period are as follows:
e  Building and office branches 10 years

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, to the lessee's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Bank uses
its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

e fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

e the exercise price under a purchase option that the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise,
lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise an
extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Bank is reasonably
certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in the lease term, a change in the assessment of the option to
purchase the underlying asset, a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or if there is a change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit and loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Bank has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
of machinery that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets, including

IT equipment. The Bank recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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N. Deposits from customers and from other banks

The fair values of deposits payable on demand (current and savings accounts), or deposits with
remaining maturity of less than one year are estimated to approximate their carrying amounts. The
fair values of deposits with remaining maturity of more than one year are estimated based on
discounted cash flows using prevailing market rates for similar deposits from banks and customers.

O. Borrowings

Borrowings are initially measured at fair value minus incremental direct transaction costs, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.

P. Employee benefits
(i). Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Bank has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

(iij).  Other long-term employee benefits

The Bank’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of the benefit
that employees have earned in retumn for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit
is discounted to determine its present value. Remeasurements are recognised in profit and loss in
the period in which they arise.

Q. Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the statement of financial position when the Bank has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

R. Interest
Effective interest rate

Interest income and expense are recognised in profit and loss using the effective interest method.
The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

o the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

o the amortised cost of the financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments other than purchased or
originated credit-impaired assets, the Bank/the Bank estimates future cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not ECL. For purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated using estimated
future cash flows including ECL.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees and points paid or
received that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial liability.

Amortised cost and gross carrying amount

The ‘amortised cost’ of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset
or financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus
the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any expected credit loss
allowance.

The ‘gross carrying amount of a financial asset’ is the amortised cost of a financial asset before
adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance.

Calculation of interest income and expense

The effective interest rate of a financial asset or financial liability is calculated on initial recognition
of a financial asset or a financial liability. In calculating interest income and expense, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-
impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. The effective interest rate is revised as a result of
periodic re-estimation of cash flows of floating rate instruments to reflect movements in market rates
of interest. The effective interest rate is also revised for fair value hedge adjustments at the date
amortisation of the hedge adjustment begins.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

R. Interest (continued)
Calculation of interest income and expense (continued)

However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition,
interestincome is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the
gross basis.

For financial assets that were credit-impaired on initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the asset. The calculation
of interest income does not revert to a gross basis, even if the credit risk of the asset improves.

Presentation
Interest income calculated using the effective interest method presented in the statement of profit
and loss and OCl includes interest on financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised

cost.

Interest expense presented in the statement of profit and loss and OCI includes financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost.

S. Fee and commission

Fee and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a
financial asset or financial liability are included in the effective interest rate.

Other fee and commission income — including account servicing fees is recognised as the related
services are performed.

A contract with a customer that results in a recognised financial instrument in the Bank’s financial
statements may be partially in the scope of CIFRS 9 and partially in the scope of CIFRS 15. If this
is the case, then the Bank first applies CIFRS 9 to separate and measure the part of the contract
that is in the scope of CIFRS 9 and then applies CIFRS 15 to the residual.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

T. Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank’s non-financial assets, other than inventories, contract assets
and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. Forintangible assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use,
the recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same time. An impairment loss is recognised
if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU (group
of CGUs), and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU (group of CGUs)
on a pro rata basis.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised.

U. Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit and loss except
items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

The Bank has determined that interest and penalties related to income taxes, including uncertain
tax treatments, do not meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore has accounted for them
under CIAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and has recognised the
related expenses in ‘other expenses’.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

U. Income tax (continued)

(). Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income for the period
using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous period.

(ii). Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

A deferred tax asset are recognised for unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences,
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when
the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in
which the Bank expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Differed tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

V. Contingent liabilities

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is not recognised in the statements of financial position and is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

34. Significant accounting policies (continued)

W. Contingent assets

Where it is not possible that there is an inflow of economic benefits, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the asset is not recognised in the statements of financial position and is disclosed
as a contingent asset, unless the probability of inflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as contingent assets unless the probability of inflow of
economic benefits is remote.

35. Changes in significant accounting policies

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments to CIFRS 9, CIAS 39, CIFRS 7, CIFRS
4 and CIFRS 16) (the Phase 2 amendments) became effective on 1 January 2021.

In accordance with the exceptions permitted in the Phase 2 amendments, the Bank has elected
not to restate comparatives for the prior periods to reflect the application of these amendments.
There is no impact on opening equity balances as a result of retrospective application.

36. New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods
beginning after 1 January 2021 and earlier application is permitted; however, the Bank has not early
adopted the new and amended standards in preparing these financial statements.

A. Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
(Amendments to CIAS 12)

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption to exclude transactions that
give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences — e.g. leases. The amendments apply for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. For leases, the associated deferred
tax asset and liabilities will need to be recognised from the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to retained earnings or
other components of equity at that date. For all other transactions, the amendments apply to
transactions that occur after the beginning of the earliest period presented.

The Bank accounts for deferred tax on leases applying the ‘integrally linked’ approach, resulting in
a similar outcome to the amendments, except that the deferred tax impacts are presented net in
the statement of financial position. There will be no impact on retained eamings on adoption of the
amendments.
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Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

36. New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet adopted

B. Other standards

The following new and amended standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the
financial statements.

— Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulffilling a Contract (Amendments to CIAS 37).

— COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (Amendment to CIFRS 16).

— Annual Improvements to CIFRS Standards 2018-2020.

— Property, Plant and Equipment; Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to CIAS 16).

— Reference to Conceptual Framework (Amendments to CIFRS 3).

— Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to CIAS 1).

— Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to CIAS 1 and CIFRS Practice Statement 2).

— Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to CIAS 8).
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SHINHAN BANK (CAMBODIA) PLC.

Supplementary Financial Information
for the year ended 31 December 2021

1. Limitation
This Supplementary Financial Information is prepared by the management of Shinhan Bank Plc. (“the
Bank”) solely for the use of the National Bank of Cambodia (“NBC”). Itis not to be used for any other
purpose without the written consent of the management of the Bank.
The computation of the Supplementary Financial Information according to the definitions of the
relevant Prakas and applicable notices set out in the respective schedules as indicated below form an
integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the summary.

2. Significant financial information

The following the Significant Financial Information of the Bank as required by NBC on its applicable Prakas.

2021

Section Financial US$ KHR’000
Ref Information (if notin %) (if applicable)
I Liquidity coverage ratio 136.30% 136.30%
I Minimum capital 75,000,000 305,550,000
1] Solvency ratio 21.35% 21.35%
v Net worth 139,431,040 568,042,058
\% Foreign currency net open position

US Dollars (33.95%) (33.95%)

Khmer Riel 33.95% 33.95%
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SHINHAN BANK (CAMBODIA) PLC.

Supplementary Financial Information (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

2. Significant financial information (continued)

The following the Significant Financial Information of the Bank as required by NBC on its applicable Prakas.

(continued)
2021
Section Financial USs$ KHR’000
Ref Information (if not in %) (if applicable)
VI Loan classification and provision
Normal/Standard 543,402,435 2,213,821,520
Special mention 10,590,128 43,144,181
Sub-standard 3,864,441 15,743,733
Doubtful 1,274,134 5,190,822
Loss 1,627,617 6,630,912
560,758,755 2,284,531,168
Allowance for bad and doubtful loans and advances
NBC'’s benchmark 8,789,300 35,807,608
Bank’s provision 2,781,705 11,332,666
Regulatory reserves 6,007,595 24,474,942
Vil Large exposures 0.00% 0.00%
VI Loans to related parties 0.00% 0.00%
IX Provision of credit in national currency 11.47% 11.47%
X Property and equipment 4.82% 4.82%
Xl Capital Buffer 13.85% 13.85%

Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC.| 133



Message From the CEO  About Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC.  Business Analysis & Planning Audited Financial Report Global Network

SHINHAN BANK (CAMBODIA) PLC.

Supplementary Financial Information (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

3. Translation

For the purpose of this Supplementary Financial Information, unless otherwise stated, United States
Dollars (“US$”) is the reporting currency. The translations of United States Dollars amounts into
Khmer Riel (‘KHR”) are included solely for compliance with the guidelines issued by the NBC relating
to the preparation and presentation of financial statements and have been made using the prescribed
official exchange rate of US$1 to KHR4,074 published by the NBC on 31 December 2021. These
convenient translations should not be construed as representations that the United States Dollars
amounts have been, could have been, or could in the future be, converted into Khmer Riel at this or
any other rate of exchange.

4. Other ratios

2021
Capital
(1) Equity to total assets 19.46%
2 Capital tier 1 to total assets 19.31%
(3) Capital tier 1 to risk weighted assets 21.26%
4) Capital tier 1 + tier 2 to risk weighted assets 21.35%
(5) Net worth to assets 19.40%
(6) Solvency ratio 21.35%
(7) Debits to total assets 80.54%
8) Debits to equity 413.89%
9) Dividend to net profit 0.00%
Asset Quality

(10) Banking reserve to total loans 1.00%
(11) Banking reserves to total assets 0.78%
(12) Non-performing loans to total loans 0.54%
(13) Non-performing loans to total assets 0.42%
(14) Classified assets to total loans 0.60%
(15) Classified assets to total assets 047%
(16) Classified assets to equity 2.40%
7) Loans to related parties to total loans 0.00%
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SHINHAN BANK (CAMBODIA) PLC.

Supplementary Financial Information (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

4.  Other ratios (continued)

2021
Asset Quality (continued)
(18) Large exposures to total loans 0.00%
(19) Loans to related parties to net worth 0.00%
(20) Large exposures to net worth 0.00%
21 General provision to total loans 0.00%
(22) Specific provision to total loans 0.54%
(23) Specific provision to non-performing loans 100.00%
(24) All allowances to total assets 1.22%
(25) Loans to deposits 670.76%
Earnings
(26) Return on assets 2.56%
(27) Return on equity 13.15%
(28) Gross yield 5.75%
(29) Net interest margin to total assets 4.86%
(30) Other income to total assets 0.20%
(31) Provisions to total assets 1.22%
(32) Overhead to total assets 2.35%
(33) Net income before tax to total assets 3.20%
(34) Taxes to total assets 0.64%
(35) Interest margin to gross income 81.56%
(36) Non-interest income to gross income 3.44%
(37) Non-interest expenses to gross income 39.48%
(38) Times interest eamed 0.00%
Liquidity
(39) Liquid assets 4.33%
(40) Short-term liabilities 80.54%
41 Net liquid assets (94.62%)
42) Quick ratio 5.38%
43) Deposits to total loans 14.91%
(44) Property and equipment to net worth 4.82%

The above calculation of the other ratios is presented in the Annex A.

Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC.| 135



Global Network

Audited Financial Report

About Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC. Business Analysis & Planning

Message From the CEO

$90°612°28L | 909'VS6'SY - G98'€96've | LPL'066°0L | - 18¥'26S v L.'066°0L i z=1eoL
- - - - - - - - VYV pajel usym
sgaw pue ‘N3 ‘gd3 ‘4Nl ‘SIg PapNouUl -y pue
YVY Usamjaq pasudwoo Bunel Lpim ‘syueq [enuso
pue sublasenos Aq pasjuelenb Jo Uo Sapunoas
199p S|geIeNew pajagquunouaun JO anjeA 1axe| Lo 211
000000'0€ 042°€9€'L - - 022°€9€'L - - 0LL'€9€"L O8N au Aq pensst (seunoss Jayio Aue pue) sQON L |9l
6lC8eLe 6v6'81C'G - 96£'GE9'C €65€l9C - 96£'Ge9°C €8G5°€19C juncooe esjuesend ejdeo pue JUNCooe JUBWSHes
Buipnioxe OGN U je pajisodep sjunowy | | | GL'L
ovi'6vL'L6 LSi'eLECe - lsv'elece | - - €,0C96°L€ - $SN U OGN oy uim juswaanba saniesay | L0 | 'L
Zra'1L0S 80L‘cCl - - 80L‘cel - - 8oLzl HHMY Ul DN aup Uim Juswaiinbal seniesay L | €L
2lE0LL L19EVLL - 126'/€1 o9 - 126'.€) o9 Juswiauinbal sanIssal
winwIUI < OGN a4 Ui Juswiaainbal senasay AN
L6Y'ELV'EY 0960.9°01 - 160°.186 698°cG8 - 160°18'6 698°cG8 SUIoO pue SejoN I L
(VTOH) siessy pinbr Ayfenp ybiH
sjossy
000.4HM $sn sojpuaun) $sn UHM sajouaLIny $sn UHA
[elol [elolL 48410 4950 uopduosaqg

$SN U syunowe pajyBiap

$SN ul sjunowse pajyBiam-UoN

1202 13quiadeq LE

:SMOJI0} Se G10g Jaquisoa( £Z PaYep 61€-GL0-L9 "ON Sexeld 8U) U0 paseq pajejndjeo sem jueg ay) Jo onel Ajipinbi ay L

onjel abelanos Ajpinbi] — | ainpayoss

LZ0Z Jaquiasa( LS papusa Jeak ay) 1oy

(panunuos) uonewloju) jeroueul{ Aeyuawajddng

'‘071d (VIQOGINVD) MNVE NVHNIHS

136 | Annual Report 2021



Global Network

Audited Financial Report

Business Analysis & Planning

790'612°28L

909%56'GY

G98°€96'VE

LP2066'0L

L8V'TSS v

1206601

Z[eJOL + | [BJOL = € [€}O] :S}OsSE [e)0]

[(v10+V1OH) %0¥ ‘v10] wnwiuiy = Z [ejo1

JUNODOE UMO 10} PI0S)

G0

Vel

-yv 01 |enba Jo Jaybiy
Bunes yum ‘spuoq palanod pue (Jaded |elosowwiod
Buipniour) senunoas 1gep a|qibile passquinouaun

G80

€'l

-y 0} [enba .o Jaybiy

Bunes ywm /1" | ur papnjout jou sgan pue (s3Sd)
sanpug J0}0sS Jl|gnd Aq pasjuelenb Jo uo saLNdas
199p 9|gelayiew palagquunousun JO anjeA Jaxen

G80

44"

-V pue +y usamiaq bBunel yum ‘syueq
|enuso pue subisianos Aq pasjuesend Jo Uo senLnoss
199p 9|gelsy/ew paiaquunousun Jo anjeA 1axel|

G80

(T

(v10) sjessy pinbi Jayi0

000.4HM
lejol

$sn
lejol

sajouaLINy
By0

$sn

dHM

sajouaLINy
2yi0

$sn

dHM

$Sn u sjunowe payybiapg

$SN ul sjunowe pajybram-uoN

uonduosag

137

Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC.

About Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC.

Message From the CEO

(panunuos) ones abesanods Aipinbig —| sjnpayss

120Z 19quiad3(] LS papua Jeak ay} 1oy
(panunuos) uoneuuoyu| jeoueuly Aejuswajddng

'‘071d (VIQOGINVD) MNVE NVHNIHS



Global Network

Audited Financial Report

About Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC. Business Analysis & Planning

Message From the CEO

SONUN0SS Jgop
Buipnjoul Buipuny sjesajoyM paIndasun Jayjo Auy L (erard

sannus [eBa] Jauo ||e wouj sysodap [euonelsdo-UuoN L cze

90Z'LvL'80C | ¥EL'06O'LS | - 906'00L°Ly |8zC'e86E | - 906'90L°Ly | 822'€86°C suonnysul
[BloueUl pue Syueq wo.y sysodap jeuoielsdo-Uop L A

- - - - - - - - $3Sd pue ‘s)ueq
[enuao ‘sublaianos woly sysodep [euonelado-uoN | 0 | £22

2sL'0clL'ly | 68y ELLLL | - G8'98G°LL | 19'9C) - Zhl'/96'8C | 0L9'9LE Z1°Z 0} | 1°Z Ul Buiodau Joj BuiAyrenb
j0u “dJ09 [ePUBUL-UOU WOJ) Spsodap euonelado-uoN | 0 | 222

1Gz'9e 868'8 - 8688 - - £6G'GE - (semAnoe Juawabeuew ysed pue Apojsnd ‘Buuesio
Aqg pajessuab Buipuny painodasun) sysodap jeuonesadO | G20 | L2
Buipuny ajessjoym painaasuf
9¢.'GLLTE | L60'Sh0'8 - 121299, 9¢6'L.€ - Gl¥'VLLLG | 906615 sysodep ajqels ssa | GL'0 | 2L
B B } } - - } B sisodep ajqels | SO0 | L2
(3uajeainba 4o 000001 $SN 0} [enba .o uey) ss9j) syisodap S buifyienb pue (sjunowe Jo ssojpsebal) SMOJJINo Ysed [Iejay
SMOJNOo yse)
SMOJJUI Yysed pajoadxg - SMojno yseo pajoadxg = SMO|JNo Yyseo 1N

000.4HM $sn salualn) $sn dHY saualn) $sn dHM
lejol |elol /Y10 /Yo uonduasaqg

$SN ul sjunowe pajybiapy

$SN u1 sjunowe pajybiam-uon

(penunuos) onea abesanods Aipinbig — | sjnpayss

LZ0Z Jaquiasa( LS papua Jeak ay} 1oy}

(panunuos) uonewloju) jeroueul{ Aeyuawajddng

'‘071d (VIQOGINVD) MNVE NVHNIHS

138 | Annual Report 2021



Global Network

Audited Financial Report

About Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC. Business Analysis & Planning

Message From the CEO

SMOINO YSED 8All_ALIBP JoUIO L | sve

suonoesUel) SAlBALISP O}
[eJ8)E]|00 JO S8BuBYD UoREN|EA J8YIEW WO SMOINO L | zve

so|qefed anpeausq L | e

suonRoBSURI) IBYJO PUR SSARRALISP O} pajejal spaau A)pinbiy pasealou|

suonoesuey) Buipuny painoss Isyio I L yee

Junoooe
UMO 10} plos) Ag padoeq suonoesuel) Buipuny painoag | 6Z0 | €£2

pIoD uey)
Jayio 10 Aq paeyoeq suonoesues Buipuny painoag | G510 | 282

- - - EVO'ere VTOH Aq payoeq suoioesuel) Buipuny painoas 0 Ko
Buipuny painsas
(panunuo2) smopino ysen
000.d4HM $sn sajualn) $sn dHM sajouaLIn) $sn dHM
leyol |elol /Yo /Yo uonduasaqg

$Sn u sjunowe payybiapg

$SN ul sjunowe pajybram-uoN

(panunuos) ones abesanods Aipinbig —| sjnpayss

120Z 19quiad3(] LS papua Jeak ay} 1oy
(panunuos) uoneuuoyu| jeoueuly Aejuswajddng

'‘071d (VIQOGINVD) MNVE NVHNIHS

139

Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC.



Global Network

Audited Financial Report

Business Analysis & Planning

B B } } B B ) ) salifioe} Aypinbry b 85°¢
B B ) ) B B ) ) Ssoni[oe) Jpaid ¥0 | /62
suoRNYISUI [eroueuY J8YJo 0
N - - - - - - - sapljoe} Aypinbry ¥0 | 96¢
008'296'8 0000022 - 000'002C - - 000'00G'G - sanioe} Ipal) ¥0 | 652
suonnIsul fejloueUly pue syueq o
B B } } B B ) ) salifioe} Aypinbry €0 | v9¢C
11€T6.°L GG6'6EY - GG6'6EY - - 1G5'66E - sen|ioe} IpaIn) L'0 | €62
Syueq [ejusd pue sublaiancs ‘sajesodiod [ejoueul) Uou O |
B B } } B B ) ) salifioe} Aypinbry S00 | 25T
1€5'GE6 L 60'GLY - €680LY LoZ'y - 288'/1Y'6 9108 son|ioe} IpaI) G00 | 1S5
SINS pue sjiejed o
sanioe) Apinbyl pue jipaJd PapILULLIOD JO UoIOod umeipun ay} Jo
sopljioe) paplwwiod
(panunuod) smopino ysen
000.4HM $sn sejouaun) $sn HHY sapualN) $sn UHM
lejol |elol /Y10 /Yo uonduasaqg

$SN ul sjunowe pajybiapy

$SN u1 sjunowe pajybiam-uon

About Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC.

Message From the CEO

(penunuos) onea abesanods Aipinbig — | sjnpayss

LZ0Z Jaquiada( LS papua Jeak ay} 1o}
(panunuos) uonewloju) jeroueul{ Aeyuawajddng

'‘071d (VIQOGINVD) MNVE NVHNIHS

1 Z‘_O Annual Report 2021



Global Network

Audited Financial Report

Business Analysis & Planning

G6°/28'80€ | L09P08'GL | - €82°186°'0L | 8Le'ce8y |- l8L'svo'syl | 12€'8.SL (182 1L12)X=vIeloL
81G8eY'L 168'Ges’l - 2eSvei'L 6LELEE - 2eSvei'L 6LE'LEE SMOJINO [ENIOB.JUOD JSLRO I 18°¢
¥8.'ve €800 - €800 - - /9121 - (pouad syjuow |, 3se| Ul SMOyIno jou
Ayiuow jo abesane podal) suonebijgo pajejel soueuly
apeJ) Uel} JaY10 Jpao JO SIa)e| pue sasjuelens) | G0 | €2
- - - - - - - - (pouad suyjuow g| 1se| ul SMOPINo Jau Alyjuow
Jo abesane podai) suonebijqo psejas aoueul apel | l YANA
- - - - - - - - sjuswsalbe
Senlioey Apinbi| pue Jipa.o 8|ged0ASs [eUORIPUCOUN | |0 LLc
(3ou .o jenyoe.npuoa ssyjaym) suonebiiqo buipuny yuabunuoa joyj0
- - - - - - - - sal|oe} Aypinbry L | 09C
B B } } - - } B Sa|ioe} Jpald b 65°C
sanue [ebaj.isyjo o]
(panunuoa) sapipioe) papILWo)
(panunuo2) smopino ysen
000.d4HM $sn sajualn) $sn UHM saualn) $sn dHM
leyol |elol /Yo /Yo uonduasaqg

$Sn u sjunowe payybiapg

$SN ul sjunowe pajybram-uoN

141

Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC.

About Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC.

Message From the CEO

(panunuos) ones abesanods Aipinbig —| sjnpayss

120Z 19quiad3(] LS papua Jeak ay} 1oy
(panunuos) uoneuuoyu| jeoueuly Aejuswajddng

'‘071d (VIQOGINVD) MNVE NVHNIHS



Global Network

Audited Financial Report

Business Analysis & Planning

- B - B yueq juaied ypm saiijioe) puny peRILLWOD b ace
- - - - 22Z'S Ul payodal 8soy) ey Jayjo suonnyisul
[EIOUBUY pUE SYUE( WO} Sal[ioe) PSRILULIOD) 0 1Zs
SUOHNYSUI [BrouRUlY PUE SYUBQ WOIL SOIIoR) PERILILLIOD UMBIPUN
- - - - sjesse Jayjo Aq patsnod 0 al'e
B ) B ) V10 Aq paieno) 0 GlL'e
B ) B ) V1OH Aq paieno) 0 142
poyeasyjodAL-ai SI Panisoal [2ie)eljoo 8y} aisyi)
- - - - sjesse Jayjo Aq palanod L clL'e
B B B B V10 Aq paieno) G20 | ¢l'E
B ) B ) VTOH Aq paiano) 0 LLe
pajeosyjodAL-al Jou SI panisoal [eI8)e|joo 8y} 8idUM

sAep og ulypm sepunyew bujurewau yym buimo.rioq sanLIndas pue sodal asionay buipuelsino

SMojul yseo

000.4HM
lejol

$sn
lejol

sajouaLINy
Lo

$sn

AUHM

sajouaLINy
Lo

$sn

dHM

$SN ul sjunowe pajybiapy

$SN u1 sjunowe pajybiam-uon

uonduosag

About Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC.

Message From the CEO

(penunuos) onea abesanods Aipinbig — | sjnpayss

LZ0Z Jaquiada( LS papua Jeak ay} 1o}
(panunuos) uonewloju) jeroueul{ Aeyuawajddng

'‘071d (VIQOGINVD) MNVE NVHNIHS

142 | Annual Report 2021



Global Network

Audited Financial Report

Business Analysis & Planning

86.'9Ci'Sh L 81€'969'GE - G60°G69'GE €Tl - G60'G69'GE | €22 SUOQNSUI [BISUBUIY PUE SyUEq UM S)isoda(] L | 68
- - - - - - - - subieseros wiol4 | g0 | gee
- - - - - - - - sopue jeBej oo wold | G0 | €€
- - - - - - - - suopnysul [epuBU Jeylo wold | S0 | 98¢
889'GlLe Zr6'Ts - €3l°ee 06,6 - €3l'ee 06,61 SuonNISUI [IUBUL PUE SHUBJ WO L | see
- - - - - - - - Sjueqeguowol | || £
6.7'919'0L 016'509°'c - 016'G09'C - - 128'1e's - sajelodioo [epueujuouwol | G0 | €8¢
- - - - - - - - saNswo4 | 60 |zee
L9€112G) 19/'¢el'e - 989'GoE'e 180'89€ - €LE1€L'9 loL'eeL slowosm eliwoly | 60 | Lee
sAep 0g UIYIM PaINIBSUN 10 PaINIDS JSYYIS ‘SMOJJUI [ENIRHUOD IO

(panuguod) smoyyul ysed

000.4HY $sn sapuaLUn) $sn dHA sapuaLIN) $sn UHM
[ejol [ejol 4o 48UlI0 uonduosag
$SN ul sjunowe pajyBiom $SN ul sjunowe pajyBleM-UoN

143

Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC.

About Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC.

Message From the CEO

(panunuos) ones abesanods Aipinbig —| sjnpayss

120Z 19quiad3(] LS papua Jeak ay} 1oy
(panunuos) uoneuuoyu| jeoueuly Aejuswajddng

'‘071d (VIQOGINVD) MNVE NVHNIHS



Global Network

Audited Financial Report

About Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC. Business Analysis & Planning

Message From the CEO

0c9cl 0c9cl - iwéll 98'.1¢ - - - 9[ejol/g [0l =IO
810z Joquiada( ¢ papus Jeak uoj ones abesanod Aypinbi
€19°26¢e'.€1 €99'GLL'cE - 6e1'182°62 seever'y | - 629'6LL'G61L | S6P'GEE'S (P 12101 %S 'S 1ejol) UIN - ¥ [ejoL =9 [ejoL
SMOJJINO Ysed jau [ejo]
zee'oLy'LLL 8€6'880°CY - ¥8'669°LY €60°68¢ - WY'LL9'LY VLIS (oze’re)2=5E101
) ) ) } ) ) ) ) shep 0g
IX8U 8} Ul 8NP SMO}Jul [BNIOBRAUOD JaUI0 Auy 0 1€
- - - - - - B - sAep og uiym Buunjew
SONUNOSS JOLO WO SMOJJUl [enjoruoD) L g¢
i i i i i i i i skep og
UILJIM SMOJJUI SED SAEALISD [ENJOEAUOO JON I ge
SMOJJul Ysed arpeALdg
(panuguod) smoyyul ysed
000.4HX $sn salpuaun) $sn dHM sajouaLInd $sn UHA
[eoL [eoL 4o U0 uonduosag

$SN ul sjunowe pajyBIaAA

$SN Ul sjunowe pajyBbrom-uoN

(penunuos) onea abesanods Aipinbig — | sjnpayss

LZ0Z Jaquiasa( LS papua Jeak ay} 1oy}

(panunuos) uonewloju) jeroueul{ Aeyuawajddng

'‘071d (VIQOGINVD) MNVE NVHNIHS

144 | Annual Report 2021



Message From the CEO  About Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) PLC.  Business Analysis & Planning Audited Financial Report Global Network

SHINHAN BANK (CAMBODIA) PLC.

Supplementary Financial Information (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Schedule Il — Minimum capital

The paid-up share capital of the Bank as at 31 December 2021 was US$75,000,000. (31 December
2020: US$75,000,000)

Schedule lll - Solvency ratio

The solvency ratio of the Bank was calculated based on Prakas No. B7-04-206 dated 29 December
2004 as follows:

2021
Weighting USs$ KHR’000

Numerator

Bank’s net worth - Schedule (V) 139,431,040 568,042,058
Denominator
Total aggregate assets

Cash, gold and claims on NBC 0% - -

Assets collateralized by deposits 0% - -

Claims on sovereign rated AAA to AA 0% - -

Claims on sovereign rated A+ to A- 20% - -

Claims on banks rated AAA to AA- 20% - -

Claims on sovereign rated BBB+ to BBB- 50% - -

Claims on banks rated A+ to A- 50% 1,233,679 5,026,008

Investment securities 120% 30,564,830 124,521,117

Other assets 100% 600,057,500 2,444.634,255
Off-balance sheet items

Full risk 100% 14,586,321 59,424,672

Medium risk 50% 6,499,086 26,477,276

Moderate risk 20% - -

Low risk 0% - -
Total denominator 652,941,416 2,660,083,328
Solvency ratio - Numerator/Denominator 21.35% 21.35%
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SHINHAN BANK (CAMBODIA) PLC.

Supplementary Financial Information (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Schedule IV — Net worth

The Bank’s net worth was calculated based on Prakas No. B7-010-182 dated 15 October 2010 as

follows:
2021
Us$ KHR’000
(if notin %) (if applicable)

Tier 1 (Core Capital
Sub-total A:
Paid- in Capital 75,000,000 305,550,000
Reserves other than revaluation 18,514,391 75,427,629
Premiums related to capital - -
Audited net profit for the last financial year 18,396,657 74,947,981
Retained earnings 27,981,416 113,996,289
Other items approved by NBC - -
Sub-total A 139,892,464 569,921,899
Limit check on retained earnings

(maximum 20% of Sub-total A) 20.00% 20.00%
Sub-total B:

Own shares held (at book value) - -
Accumulated losses - -
Intangible assets 1,068,112 4,351,488
Loss determined on dates other than the end
of the annual accounting period - -
Shareholders, Directors, and Related parties - -
Unpaid portion(s) of capital - -
Loans, overdrafts and other advances - -
Debt instruments held bearing signature
of shareholders directors and related parties - -

Other loss - -
Sub-total B 1,068,112 4,351,488
Total Tier 1 Capital (A - B) 138,824,352 565,570,411
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SHINHAN BANK (CAMBODIA) PLC.

Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Schedule IV — Net worth (continued)

Tier 2 (Complementary Capital)
Sub-total C:

Revaluation reserves approved by NBC

Provisions for general banking risks

approved by NBC

General provision of 1% foreseen in Prakas on asset
classification and provisioning in banking and
financial institution

Subordinated debts approved by NBC

Other items approved by NBC

Sub-total C

Limit check on subordinated debts
(maximum 50% of Tier 1 Capital)

Sub-total D:

Equity participation in banking or financial institutions
Other items

Sub-total D
Total Tier 2 Capital (C - D)

Limit check on Tier 2 Capital
(maximum 100% of Tier 1 Capital)

Bank’s net worth (Capital Tier 1 + Tier 2)

2021

US$
(if notin %)

606,688

KHR’000

(if applicable)

2,471,647

606,688

2,471,647

0.00%

0.00%

606,688

2,471,647

0.44%

0.44%

139,431,040

568,042,058
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SHINHAN BANK (CAMBODIA) PLC.

Supplementary Financial Information (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Schedule VI - Loan classification and provision

The NBC issued Prakas No. B7-017-344 dated 1 December 2017 on Credit Risk Grading and
Provision on Impairment and Circular No. B7-018-001 dated 16 February 2018 on the Implementation
of Prakas on Credit Risk Grading and Provision on Impairment, which require all banks and financial
institutions to measure the impairment and provide sufficient allowance for bad and doubtful loans
based on the new credit risk grading and provision as follows:

NBC’s Bank’s
Total Benchmark Provision Variance
US$ % Us$ Us$ US$
As at 31 December 2021
1.Short-term loans (less than or equal to one year)
Normal/Standard 33,311,087 1% 333,111 388,463 55,352
Special mention 19,186 3% 576 591 15
Sub-standard 604,687 20% 120,937 - (120,937)
Doubtful 140,000 50% 70,000 31,115 (38,885)
Loss 44983 100% 44,983 - (44,983)
34,119,943 569,607 420,169 (149,438)
Allowance for bad and
doubtful loans 569,607
33,550,336
2. Long-term loans (more than one year)
Normal/Standard 510,091,347 1% 5,100,913 1,184,408 (3,916,505)
Special mention 10,570,943 3% 317,128 212,459 (104,669)
Sub-standard 3,259,754 20% 651,951 - (651,951)
Doubtful 1,134,134  50% 567,067 964,668 397,601
Loss 1,582,634 100% 1,582,634 - (1,582,634)
526,638,812 8,219,693 2,361,535 (5,858,158)
Allowance for bad and
doubtful loans 8,219,693
518,419,119
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SHINHAN BANK (CAMBODIA) PLC.

Supplementary Financial Information (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Audited Financial Report Global Network

Schedule VI - Loan classification and provision (continued)

NBC’s Bank’s
Total Benchmark Provision Variance
KHR’000 % KHR’000 KHR’000 KHR’000
As at 31 December 2021
1. Short-term loans (less than or equal to one year)
Normal/Standard 135,709,368 1% 1,357,094 1,582,598 225,504
Special mention 78164 3% 2,347 2,408 61
Sub-standard 2463495 20% 492 697 - (492,697)
Doubtful 570,360 50% 285,180 126,763 (158,417)
Loss 183,261 100% 183,261 - (183,261)
139,004,648 2,320,579 1,711,769 (608,810)
Allowance for bad and
doubfful loans 2,320,579
136,684,069
2. Long-term loans (more than one year)
Normal/Standard 2,078,112,148 1% 20,781,120 4,825,278 (15,955,841)
Special mention 43,066,022 3% 1,291,979 865,558 (426,422)
Sub-standard 13,280,238 20% 2,656,048 - (2,656,048)
Doubtful 4,620,462 50% 2,310,231 3,930,057 1,619,826
Loss 6,447,651 100% 6,447,651 - (6,447,651)
2,145,526,521 33,487,029 9,620,893 (23,866,136)
Allowance for bad and
doubtful loans 33,487,029
2,112,039,492

Schedule VIl - Large exposures

The Bank has no large exposure individually exceeding 10% of the Bank’s net worth as at 31
December 20201. The exposure is the higher of the outstanding loans or commitments and the

authorised loans or commitments.
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SHINHAN BANK (CAMBODIA) PLC.

Supplementary Financial Information (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Schedule VIl - Loans to related parties

The Company did not have loans to related parties as at 31 December 2021.

Schedule IX — Provision of credit in national currency

The Bank is required to have its loans in national currency at least 10% of the total loan portfolio based
on Prakas B7-016-334 issued on 1 December 2016 which shall be fully implemented by 31 December

2021.
2021
Us$ KHR’000
(if notin %) (if applicable)
Loans and advances in KHR A 64,300,027 261,958,310
Total loans and advances B 560,758,755 2,284,531,167
Provision of credit in national currency AB 11.47% 11.47%

Schedule X — Property and equipment

The ratio of the Bank’s property and equipment used for the operations to net worth as required in the
NBC'’s Prakas no. B7-01-186 dated 8 November 2001 was as follow:

2021
US$ KHR’000
(ifnotin %) (if applicable)
Property and equipment A 6,720,181 27,378,017
Bank’s net worth (Schedule IV) B 139,431,040 568,042,058
Property and equipment ratio AB 4.82% 4.82%
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SHINHAN BANK (CAMBODIA) PLC.

Supplementary Financial Information (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Schedule Xl — Determination of capital buffer of banks and financial
institutions

The National Bank of Cambodia issued Prakas No. B7-018-068 on 22 February 2018 with the aims at:

e Strengthening capital base to settle any loss which may arise from risk of Institutions;
¢ Preventing the decrease of capital to that lower than minimum capital; and

¢ Reducing risk deriving from relationship between financial sector and pro-cyclicality.

The Bank is required to build up capital conservation buffer 1.25% and 2.5% from 01 January 2019
and from 01 January 2020 respectively in addition to minimum tier 1 capital.

Distribution of annual profit shall be prohibited when tier 1 capital ratio (MCR1) of Institutions is under
any quartile of capital conservation buffer as stipulated in article 11 of the present Prakas.

Tier 1 Capital Ratio Minimum Capital Conservation R_atio
(expressed as percentage of earnings)
> MCR1 (7.5%) to (MCR1 + 0.625%) 100%
> (MCR1 + 0.625%) to (MCR1 + 1.25%) 80%
> (MCR1 + 1.25%) to (MCR1 + 1.875%) 60%
> (MCR1 + 1.875%) to (MCR1 + 2.5%) 40%
> (MCR1 + 2.5%) 0%

Institutions shall prepare report as follow table of the Prakas including tier 1 capital, tier 2 capital, and
risk weighted assets whose figures are the same as those in reports on solvency ratio and calculation
of the Bank’s net worth, on both solo and consolidated basis.
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SHINHAN BANK (CAMBODIA) PLC.

Supplementary Financial Information (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Schedule Xl — Determination of capital buffer of banks and financial
institutions (continued)

The Bank

Specific rules applicable to the Bank %
Minimum solvency ratio 15.00
Minimum Tier1 solvency ratio 7.50
Capital conservation buffer 1.25
Countercyclical buffer 0.00

31 December 2021

Buffer to be built Amount As % of RWA
Capital conservation buffer 8,161,768 13
Countercyclical capital buffer - -
Total capital buffer 8,161,768 13
Tier 1 Capital 138,824,352 213
Tier 2 Capital 606,688 0.1
Total Capital (Net Worth) 139,431,040 214
Risk Weighted Assets - RWA 652,941,416 -
Tier 1 capital needed for Minimum Solvency ratio 97,334,524 14.9
Available Tier 1 Capital for Capital buffers 41.489,828 6.4
Additional Tier 1 Capital buffer to be built up - -

Minimum Tier 1 capital ratio + available Tier 1 capital for capital buffer 13.85

Minimum Capital Conservation ratio (expressed as percentage of earnings) -
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Message From the CEO
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GLOBAL N ETWORK (As the end of Mar, 2022)

20 Countries, 165 Networks
Branch 14, Subsidiary 11(8 subsidiaries have 146 branches), Representative office 2

®England

®Poland ® Canada

o China

eKazakhstan e South Korea (HQ)

® Uzbekistan @ Japan
e Hongkong
eMyanmar ®Mexico
eVietnam
e Cambodia
e Phillipine

eSingapore
gap eIndonasia

®Germany
eUnited States

o Dubai
elIndia

® Australia

SHINHAN BANK

Country Name Telephone Address

Japan Shinhan Bank Japan +81-3-6403-0505  Tokyo, Japan

China Shinhan Bank (China) +86-10-8529-0088  Beijing 100027, China

Vietnam Shinhan Bank Vietnam +84-8-3829-1581 Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

USA Shinhan Bank America +1-646-843-7300 475 Park Ave South 4th(5th) FL New York, NY 10016
Indonesia PT Bank Shinhan Indonesia +62-21-2975-1500 Jenderal Sudirman Kav.22-23 South Jakarta, Indonesia
Germany Shinhan Bank Europe GmbH +49-69-975-7130 60322 Frankfurt am Main, Germany

Canada Shinhan Bank Canada +1-416-250-3500  Ontario, M2N6L7, Canada

Cambodia Shinhan Bank (Cambodia) Plc +855-23-971-100  Phnom Penh, Cambodia

Kazakhstan ~ Shinhan Bank Kazakhstan +7-727-356-9620 38 Dostyk ave. Almaty, 050010, Kazakhstan

Mexico Banco Shinhan de Mexico +52-55-6722-8000 Mexico D.F., Mexico

Hong Kong  Hong Kong Branch +852-2867-0100  Kowloon, Hong Kong

USA New York Branch +1-212-371-8000  New York, NY10016, USA

UK London Branch +44-207-600-0606 London, EC3V 0AS. UK

Singapore  Singapore Branch +65-6536-1144 1 George St. #15-03, Singapore 049145

India Mumbai Branch +91-22-6199-2000 Mumbai, 400013, India

India New Delhi Branch +91-11-4500-4800 2nd & 3rd Floor, D-5, South Extension, Part-2, New Delhi
India Kancheepuram Branch +91-44-2714-3500 Tamildadu, India 602105

India Pune Branch +91-20-3086-4800 Maharashtra, India 411001

India Ahmedabad Branch +91-79-7117-0400 Ahmedabad, Gujarat, India 380015

India Ranga Reddy Branch +91-40-6635-2000 Telangana State, India 500032

Myanmar Yangon Branch +95-1-9345-170 Yangon, Myanmar

Australia Sydney Branch +61-2-9224-7901  Sydney, NSW 2000, Australia

Philippines  Manila Branch +63-2-405-6300 Taguig City, Manila, Philippines

UAE Dubai Branch +971-4-551-2820  P.O. Box 507001, Dubai, UAE

Uzbekistan ~ Shinhan Bank Uzbekistan Representative Office +998-71-150-1184  Oybek St. 22 Tashkent, Uzbekistan 100015

Hungary Shinhan Bank Hungary Representative Office +36-30-969-5829 1117 Budapest, Irinyi Jozsef utca 4-20, 225/1, Hungary
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@ Shinhan Bank Cambodia

No.79, Kampuchea Krom,

Sangkat Monorom, Khan 7 Makara, Phnom Penh
Tel: 023 955 001 /002 / 095 777 665 [ 098 222 595
http://www.shinhan.com.kh/



